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PART I. EINANCIAL INFORMATION

ITEM 1. Einancial Statements
WATTS WATER TECHNOLOGIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(Amounts in millions, except share information)

(Unaudited)
September 29 December 31
2013 2012
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalel $ 227 % 271.%
Shor-term investment securitit — 2.1
Trade accounts receivable, less allowance for dolétcounts of $10.3 million at September 2¢
2013 and $9.5 million at December 31, 2! 228.¢ 206.2
Inventories, net
Raw materials 109.¢ 110.¢
Work in proces: 217 20.t
Finished goods 179.7 156.7
Total Inventories 310.¢ 288.(
Prepaid expenses and other as 21.4 22.t
Deferred income taxe 23.c 21.t
Asset held for sal 1.3 —
Assets of discontinued operations — 11.7
Total Current Assets 812.¢ 823.%
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Property, plant and equipment, at c 530.¢ 510.2
Accumulated depreciation (311.9) (288.5)
Property, plant and equipment, net 219.¢ 221,
OTHER ASSETS
Goodwill 509.¢ 504.(
Intangible assets, n 135.¢ 145.¢
Deferred income taxe 3.€ 4.8
Other, net 9.1 9.8
TOTAL ASSETS $ 1,690.. $ 1,709.(
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS ' EQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Accounts payabl $ 134€ $ 131.2
Accrued expenses and other liabilit 129.¢ 116.€
Accrued compensation and bene 44.C 41.¢€
Current portion of lon-term debt 2.1 77.1
Liabilities of discontinued operations — 1.5
Total Current Liabilities 310.: 368.4
LONG-TERM DEBT, NET OF CURRENT PORTIO 306.2 307.t
DEFERRED INCOME TAXES 43.1 44.¢
OTHER NONCURRENT LIABILITIES 44.¢ 48.7
STOCKHOLDER¢ EQUITY:
Preferred Stock, $0.10 par value; 5,000,000 shauttworized; no shares issued or outstan — —
Class A Common Stock, $0.10 par value; 80,000,0@0es authorized; 1 vote per share; issued
outstanding 28,784,168 shares at September 29,811 28,673,639 shares at December 31,
2012 2.8 2.8
Class B Common Stock, $0.10 par value; 25,000,6@8es authorized; 10 votes per share; issued
and outstanding, 6,504,290 shares at Septemb&0293,and 6,588,680 at December 31, 2 0.€ 0.€
Additional paic-in capital 468.2 448.
Retained earning 512.¢ 498.1
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) 1.€ (10.9)
Total Stockholders’ Equity 985.¢ 939.t
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY $ 1,690.. $ 1,709.(

See accompanying notes to consolidated financssients.
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WATTS WATER TECHNOLOGIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(Amounts in millions, except per share information)

(Unaudited)
Third Quarter Ended Nine Months Ended
September 29 September 30 September 29 September 30
2013 2012 2013 2012

Net sales $ 371.¢ % 352.¢ $ 1,097t $ 1,072.¢
Cost of goods sold 237.¢ 225.1 701.¢ 688.(

GROSS PROFIT 133.¢ 127.7 395.¢ 384.¢
Selling, general and administrative exper 100.% 91.7 294.( 285.¢
Restructuring and other charges, 2.8 (0.5) 7.0 1.6
Adjustment to gain on disposal of busin — 1.€ — 1.€
Goodwill and other long-lived asset impairment giesr 0.2 2.4 0.2 3.C

OPERATING INCOME 30.z 32.5 94.4 92.€
Other (income) expens

Interest income (0.7 (0.7 (0.9 (0.5)

Interest expens 5.1 6.1 16.€ 18.2

Other expense (income), net 0.3 (0.€) 1.7 (1.5)
Total other expense 5.3 5.4 17.€ 16.4
INCOME FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS BEFORE

INCOME TAXES 24.¢ 27.1 76.5 76.2
Provision for income taxes 7.4 8.8 23.¢ 24.(
NET INCOME FROM CONTINUING OPERATION! 17.5 18.c 52.7 52.2
(Loss) income from discontinued operations, neag (2.1) 0.4 (2.3 0.7
NET INCOME $ 154 $ 18.7 $ 504 $ 52.¢
BASIC EPS
Net income (loss) per shal

Continuing operation $ 0.4¢ $ 05z $ 14¢ $ 1.4¢

Discontinued operations (0.06) 0.01 (0.0€) 0.0z

NET INCOME $ 04: $ 05 $ 14z $ 1.4¢€
Weighted average number of shares 35.4 35.1 35.5 36.1
DILUTED EPS
Net income (loss) per shal

Continuing operation $ 0.4¢ $ 05z $ 14¢ $ 1.4¢

Discontinued operations (0.06) 0.01 (0.07) 0.0z

NET INCOME $ 04: $ 0.5 $ 141 $ 1.4¢€
Weighted average number of shares 35.¢ 35.2 35.€ 36.2
Dividends per share $ 0.1z $ 0.11 $ 037 $ 0.3

See accompanying notes to consolidated financgsients.
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WATTS WATER TECHNOLOGIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(Amounts in millions)
(Unaudited)

Net income

Other comprehensive income, net of t

Foreign currency translation adjustme

Defined benefit pension plar

Amortization of net losses included in net perigoénsion
cost

Other comprehensive income, net of tax

Comprehensive income

See accompanying notes to consolidated financi&tsients.

Third Quarter Ended

Nine Months Ended

September 29 September 30 September 29 September 30
2013 2012 2013 2012
$ 154 $ 187 $ 504 $ 52.¢
244 25.1 12.C 1.¢
0.1 0.2 0.4 0.t
24.F 25.5 12.4 2.4
$ 39.¢ $ 44.C 3 62.6 $ 55.%
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WATTS WATER TECHN

OLOGIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(Amounts in millions)

(Unaudited)
Nine Months Ended
September 29 September 30
2013 2012
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net income $ 504 $ 52.¢
Less: (Loss) income from discontinued operatiors ofi taxes (2.3 0.7
Net income from continuing operatio 52.7 52.2
Adjustments to reconcile net income from continuapgrations to net cash provided by continui
operating activities
Depreciatior 25.4 24.2
Amortization of intangible: 11.C 11.€
Stoclk-based compensatic 6.€ 4.2
Deferred income tax bene (3.0 (1.2
Loss on disposal and impairment of goodwill, prépeplant and equipment and ott 0.2 3.t
Changes in operating assets and liabilities, neffetts from business acquisitions and
divestures
Accounts receivabl (20.9) (10.9
Inventories (20.2) (17.9)
Prepaid expenses and other as 2.1 (8.5
Accounts payable, accrued expenses and otheiitiied 13.7 13.€
Net cash provided by continuing operations 67.7 71.5
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Additions to property, plant and equipmi (22.€) (18.€)
Proceeds from the sale of property, plant and eneiy 1.4 0.2
Investments in securitie — (2.7
Proceeds from the sale of asset held for — 0.7
Proceeds from sale of securit 2.1 4.1
Business acquisitions, net of cash acquired — (17.5)
Net cash used in investing activities (19.7) (33.9
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from lor-term debt — 9.2
Payments of lor-term debi (76.9) (23.9)
Payment of capital leases and ot (3.€ (2.7
Proceeds from share transactions under employek glans 9.4 9.4
Tax benefit of stock awards exercis 1.7 1.€
Dividends (13.)) (12.3)
Payments to repurchase common stock (20.0) (65.€)
Net cash used in financing activities (102.9) (83.9
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and casba&ts 1.8 1.€
Net cash (used in) provided by operating activitiediscontinued operatiot (0.€) 2.2
Net cash provided by investing activities of distbomed operation 7.8 —
DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT¢ (44.¢) (41.7)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 271.¢ 250.¢
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF PERIOD $ 2272 $ 209.t
NON-CASH INVESTING AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition of businesse
Fair value of assets acquir $ — 3 26.¢
Cash paid, net of cash acquil — 17.5
Liabilities assume: $ — 8 9.3
Acquisitions of fixed assets under financing agrest $ 0.7 $ 0.8
Issuance of stock under management stock purchias $ 05 $ 0.7
CASH PAID FOR:
Interest 128 $ 12.7
Income taxes 251 $ 20.€

See accompanying notes to consolidated financssients.
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WATTS WATER TECHNOLOGIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Unaudit))

1. Basis of Presentation

The accompanying unaudited consolidated finants#éments have been prepared in accordance witluatiag principles generally
accepted in the United States for interim finantifdrmation and with the instructions to Form 10a@d Article 10 of Regulation S-X.
Accordingly, they do not include all of the infortitm and footnotes required by accounting princgenerally accepted in the United States
for complete financial statements. In the opimddmanagement, all adjustments (consisting of nbramuirring accruals) considered
necessary for a fair presentation have been indludthe Watts Water Technologies, Inc. (the Comyp&onsolidated Balance Sheet as of
September 29, 2013, the Consolidated Statemei@p@fations for the third quarters and nine monttted September 29, 2013 and
September 30, 2012, the Consolidated Statemer@smprehensive Income for the third quarters and months ended September 29, 2013
and September 30, 2012, and the Consolidated Stateraf Cash Flows for the nine months ended Sdy@e9, 2013 and September 30,
2012.

The consolidated balance sheet at December 31,28 Been derived from the audited consolidateahfiral statements at that date. The
accounting policies followed by the Company arecdbsd in the Company’s Annual Report on Form 1&Kthe year ended December 31,
2012. The financial statements included in thgoreshould be read in conjunction with the cordatied financial statements and notes
included in the Annual Report on Form 10-K for $fear ended December 31, 2012. Operating resulthéanterim periods presented are not
necessarily indicative of the results to be expkébe the year ending December 31, 2013.

The Company operates on a 52-week fiscal year gratirDecember 31st. Any quarterly or nine montia dantained in this Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q generally reflect the resultsperations for a 13-week period or 39-week periedpectively.

2. Accounting Policies

Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in confoymiith accounting principles generally acceptethia United States requires management
to make estimates and assumptions that affecefh@ted amounts of assets and liabilities and asce of contingent assets and liabilities at
the date of the financial statements and the regamounts of revenues and expenses during thairepperiod. Actual results could differ
from those estimates.

Goodwill and Long-Lived Assets

The changes in the carrying amount of goodwill bpgraphic segment are as follows:

September 29, 201

Gross Balance Accumulated Impairment Losses Net Goodwill
Acquired Foreign Balance Impairment Balance
Balance During Currency September 2¢ Balance Loss September 2¢  September 2¢
January 1, the Translation January 1, During the
2013 Period and Other 2013 2013 Period 2013 2013
(in millions)
North America $ 225¢€ $ — 3 05 $ 2251 $ (242 % — 3 249 $ 200.¢
Europe, Middle East and
Africa (EMEA) 289.7 — 6.1 295.¢ — — — 295.¢
Asia 12.€ — 0.2 13.1 — — — 13.1
Total $ 5287 $ — 3 56 $ 534.( $ (24.2) $ — $ (249 $ 509.¢
September 30, 201
Gross Balance Accumulated Impairment Losses Net Goodwill
Foreign Balance
Balance Acquired Currency September 3C Balance Impairment Balance September 3C
January 1, During the Translation January 1, Loss During September
2012 Period and Other 2012 2012 the Period 30, 2012 2012
(in millions)
North America $ 2136 $ 13: $ 023 $ 227+ $ (232 $ (10 $ (242 $  203.
EMEA 281.1 — (0.2 280.¢ — — — 280.¢
Asia 12.7 — — 12.i — — — 12.i
Total $ 5076 $ 135 $ 01 $ 521.C $ (232 $ (1.0 $ (242 $  496.¢

On January 31, 2012, the Company completed thesitign of tekmar Control Systems (tekmar) in arehgurchase transaction. The initial
purchase price paid was CAD $18.0 million, withtpdssing adjustments related to working capital andkarnout based on the attainmet
certain future earnings levels. The initial puredh@rice paid was equal to approximately $17.8onilbased on the exchange rate of Canc
dollar to U.S. dollar as of January 31, 2012. Tdial purchase price will not exceed CAD $26.2
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million. The Company accounted for the transactisra business combination. In January 2013, timep@ny completed a purchase price
allocation that resulted in the recognition of Flaillion in goodwill and $10.1 million in intangi assets.

Goodwill and indefinite-lived intangible assets tasted for impairment at least annually or moegjfiently if events or circumstances
indicate that it is “more likely than not” that thenight be impaired, such as from a change in lassirtonditions. The Company performs its
annual impairment assessment of goodwill and inéteflived intangible assets in the fourth quadieach year.

As of October 28, 2012, the annual impairment asiglglate, the fair value of the EMEA reporting umiteeded the carrying value by a
significant amount. The EMEA reporting unit regats the EMEA geographic segment excluding the li&iiceporting unit. During the six
months ended June 30, 2013, operating resultféEMEA reporting unit had been hindered by themtow in the economic environment

in Europe and continued to fall below the expecipérating results and growth rates used in theutzlon of the present value of future cash
flow projections, triggering the decision to updtite impairment analysis. As a result of the upddair value assessment, it was determined
that the fair value of the EMEA reporting unit didcrease from year end but continues to exceedritging value by approximately 15%.

The Company also performed an analysis on the liweg-assets in the EMEA reporting unit as a resfithe triggering event and concluded
that these assets were not impaired.

Based on the operating results for the three maaibded September 29, 2013 and the expected sdvimyshe European operations
restructuring program approved by the Board on 30ly2013, it was determined that the fair valughefEMEA reporting unit continues to
exceed its carrying value. Should the EMEA remgrtinit's operating results decline further for aegson, including if the European
marketplace deteriorates beyond current expectatoshould interest rates increase significattign the reporting un’goodwill may be ¢
risk for impairment in the future. The EMEA repadiunit’s goodwill balance as of September 29, 2048 $218.2 million.

During the third quarter of 2012, the Company rdedra pre-tax goodwill impairment charge of $1.0iam relating to the Blue Ridge
Atlantic Enterprises, Inc. (BRAE) reporting unitforth America as it continued to fall below exgiins and triggered the decision to
update the impairment analysis. The Company aldewed the BRAE earnout calculation and record&d.a million reduction in the
contingent earnout liability during the third quarbf 2012 (see Note 5).

Intangible assets with estimable lives and othegllived assets are reviewed for impairment whenevents or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount of an asset setagroup may not be recoverable. Recoverabiliintaihgible assets with estimable lives
other long-lived assets are measured by a compaaitine carrying amount of an asset or asset giofyture net undiscounted pretax cash
flows expected to be generated by the asset or gisa®. If these comparisons indicate that antass®t recoverable, the impairment loss
recognized is the amount by which the carrying amotfithe asset or asset group exceeds the redatadated fair value. Estimated fair va
is based on either discounted future pretax opeyatash flows or appraised values, depending onahee of the asset. The Company
determines the discount rate for this analysis thasethe weighted average cost of capital baseatie@market and guideline public compar
for the related business, and does not alloca¢edast charges to the asset or asset group beinguneda Judgment is required to estimate
future operating cash flows.

The Company recorded impairment charges relatedrtain assets held for sale of $0.2 million andt$iillion in the third quarter of 2013
and 2012, respectively.

Intangible assets include the following:

September 29, 201 December 31, 201

Gross Net Gross Net

Carrying Accumulated Carrying Carrying Accumulated Carrying

Amount Amortization Amount Amount Amortization Amount

(in millions)

Patents $ 165 $ (129 $ 41 $ 165 $ (117 $ 4.¢
Customer relationshir 132.% (73.9) 58.€ 131.¢ (65.9) 65.5
Technology 27.1 (10.9 16.7 27.4 (9.0 18.4
Trade Name 13.€ (2.7 10.¢ 13.t (1.8 11.7
Other 8.7 (5.6) 3.1 8.7 (5.5) 3.2
Total amortizable intangible 198.2 (104.9 93.4 197.t (93.9 103.¢
Indefinite-lived intangible asse 42.2 — 42.2 41.¢ — 41.¢
Total $ 2402 $ (104. $ 135.6 $ 239.5 $ 93.9 $ 145.4

Aggregate amortization expense for amortizablengitale assets for the third quarters of 2013 aritP2@as $3.7 million and $3.6 million,
respectively, and for the first nine months of 2@b8 2012 was $11.0 million and $11.8 million, exdjvely. Additionally, future
amortization expense for the next five years onrdzable intangible assets is expected to be apmaely $3.7 million for the remainder of
2013, $14.6 million for 2014, $14.3 million for 281$13.8 million for 2016 and $13.5 million for Z0JAmortization expense is recorded ¢
straight-line basis over the estimated useful lokthe intangible assets. The weighted-averagairgnyg life of total amortizable intangible
assets is 8.6 years. Patents, customer relatianghizhnology, trade names and other

8
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amortizable intangibles have weighted-average neimgilives of 5.8 years, 5.8 years, 11.6 years], ¥&ars and 40.9 years, respectively.
Indefinite-lived intangible assets primarily inckittademarks and trade names.

Stock-Based Compensation

The Company maintains two stock incentive planssumhich key employees have been granted inceatoak options (ISOs) and
nonqualified stock options (NSOs) to purchase thm@anys Class A common stock. Only one plan, the Secandmded and Restated 2(
Stock Incentive Plan, is currently available foe tirant of new stock options, which are currending granted only to employees. Under the
2004 Stock Incentive Plan, options become exerldsaler a four-year period at the rate of 25% pEryand expire ten years after the grant
date. ISOs and NSOs granted under the plans mayeharcise prices of not less than 100% of thenfiairket value of the Class A Common
Stock on the date of grant. The Company’s curresttice is to grant all options at fair market watn the grant date. The Company issued
340,367 stock options during the third quarter 248,867 during the first nine months of 2013.

The fair value of each option issued under the 284k Incentive Plan is estimated on the dateafity using the Black-Scholes-Merton
Model, based on the following weighted average mgsions:

2013 2012
Expected life (years) 6.C 6.C
Expected stock price volatilit 40.2% 41.2%
Expected dividend yiel 1.C% 1.2%
Risk-free interest rat 1.7% 0.%

The above assumptions were used to determine tighted average grant-date fair value of stock aystiof $20.30 and $13.49 in 2013 and
2012, respectively.

The Company has also granted shares of restritied and deferred shares to key employees and ateakds to non-employee members of
the Company’s Board of Directors under the 2004£IStocentive Plan. Stock awards to non-employembers of the Company’s Board of
Directors are fully vested upon grant. Employeestricted stock awards and deferred shares vesteothree-year period at the rate of one-
third per year. The restricted stock awards andrded shares are amortized to expense on a stiaighiasis over the vesting period. The
Company issued 116,851 shares of restricted stotk 4,492 deferred shares in the third quarterl283018 shares of restricted stock and
11,492 deferred shares in the first nine montH204f3 under the 2004 Stock Incentive Plan.

The Company also has a Management Stock PurchasetRlt allows for the purchase of restricted stouks (RSUs) by key employees. On
an annual basis, key employees may elect to reegpagtion of their annual incentive compensatioREUs instead of cash. Each RSU
represents one share of Class A common stock gndéhased by the employee at 67% of the fair ntarddee of the Company’s Class A
common stock on the date of grant. RSUs vestredtheually over a three-year period from the gdaté or upon the third anniversary of the
grant date and receipt of the shares underlyingsRiSdeferred for a minimum of three years or sy&fater number of years as is chosen by
the employee. An aggregate of 2,000,000 shar€ask A common stock may be issued under the MamaigieStock Purchase Plan. The
Company granted 45,196 RSUs and 63,739 RSUs initleemonths of 2013 and 2012, respectively.

The fair value of each RSU issued under the Managé®tock Purchase Plan is estimated on the dafeanf using the Black-Scholes-
Merton Model based on the following weighted averagsumptions:

2013 2012
Expected life (years) 3.C 3.C
Expected stock price volatilil 34.1% 38.2%
Expected dividend yiel 0.€% 1.1%
Risk-free interest rat 0.4% 0.4%

The above assumptions were used to determine tighted average grant-date fair value of RSUs of@.8&nd $15.68 in 2013 and 2012,
respectively.

A more detailed description of each of these ptaarsbe found in Note 12 of Notes to Consolidatemfcial Statements in the Company’s
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended Ddwemn31, 2012.

9
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Shipping and Handling

The Company’s shipping costs included in sellireperal and administrative expenses were $10.0omilhd $9.4 million for the third
quarters of 2013 and 2012, respectively, and wege3bmillion and $28.2 million for the first nineamths of 2013 and 2012, respectively.

Research and Developme

Research and development costs included in seflieigeral and administrative expenses were $5.2om#ind $4.9 million for the third
quarters of 2013 and 2012, respectively, and wéel$million and $15.3 million for the first nineamths of 2013 and 2012, respectively.

Taxes, Other than Income Taxes

Taxes assessed by governmental authorities onraakactions are recorded on a net basis and edfudm sales in the Company’s
consolidated statements of operations.

Income Taxe

Income taxes are accounted for under the assdiadnility method. Deferred tax assets and liaketiare recognized for the future tax
consequences attributable to differences betweefirthncial statement carrying amounts of existingets and liabilities and their respective
tax bases and operating loss and tax credit carwafrds. Deferred tax assets and liabilities arasueed using enacted tax rates expected to
apply to taxable income in the years in which thteseporary differences are expected to be recowvarsdttled. The effect on deferred tax
assets and liabilities of a change in tax ratesdsgnized in income in the period that includesghactment date.

New Accounting Standar:

In July 2013, the Financial Accounting Standardafq“FASB”) issued Accounting Standards Update§tR) 2013-11, “Presentation of an
Unrecognized Tax Benefit When a Net Operating l@asyforward, a Similar Tax Loss, or a Tax Creditr@forward Exists”, which is
intended to eliminate the diversity in practicahie presentation of unrecognized tax benefitsas¢hnstances. ASU 2013-11 is effective for
fiscal years and interim periods beginning aftec&uaber 15, 2013. The adoption of this guidance@i®rpected to have a material impact on
the Company'’s financial statements.

In March 2013, the FASB issued ASU No. 2013-05r8#s Accounting for the Cumulative Translationjdgtment upon Derecognition of
Certain Subsidiaries or Groups of Assets withiroeelgn Entity or of an Investment in a Foreign BntiThis ASU is intended to eliminate
diversity in practice on the release of cumulatiamslation adjustment into net income when a gagither sells a part or all of its investment
in a foreign entity or no longer holds a contralifinancial interest. In addition, the amendmentthis ASU resolve the diversity in practice
for the treatment of business combinations achi@évethges (sometimes also referred to as stepsatbops) involving a foreign entity. The
provisions of this ASU are effective for interimcaannual periods beginning after December 15, 2@1tB,early adoption permitted, and
must be applied prospectively. The Company earbptetl the ASU in 2013.

In February 2013, the FASB issued ASU 2013-02, ‘tReypg of Amounts Reclassified Out of Accumulateth€ Comprehensive Income”,
which requires additional disclosures about amoratkassified out of OCI by component, either omfidice of the income statement or as a
separate footnote to the financial statements. R818-02 is effective for fiscal years, and intepariods within those years, beginning after
December 15, 2012. The adoption of this guidansenibdhad a material impact on the Company'’s firstatements.

3. Discontinued Operations

On August 1, 2013, the Company completed the dadél of the outstanding shares of an indirectlyoli§+ owned subsidiary, Watts Insulati
GmbH (Austroflex), receiving net cash proceeds®3$nillion. Austroflex is an Austrian-based maatiirer of pre-insulated flexible pipe
systems for district heating, solar applicationd ander-floor radiant heating systems. Austroflakrbt meet performance expectations since
its purchase approximately three years ago. Témdfter tax on disposal of the business was appately $2.2 million. Further, during the
year ended December 31, 2011, the Company wrote dawstrofley's long-lived assets by $14.8 million. The Compamgluated the
operations of Austroflex and determined that it ldawt have a substantial continuing involvemenAustroflex’s operations and cash flows.
Austroflex’s results of operations have been prieskas discontinued operations in the quarter eSeggdember 29, 2013 and all comparative
periods presented have been adjusted in the cdasadi interim financial statements to reflect Aofbéx’s results as discontinued operations.

On December 21, 2012, the Company completed tleeofalll of the outstanding shares of its indingetholly-owned subsidiary, Flomatic
Corporation (Flomatic). The sale excluded the bawkproduct line of Flomatic, which was retainedthg Company. Flomatic, located in
Glens Falls, New York, specializes in manufactuang selling check valves, foot valves and autarratdraulic control valves for the well
water industry. The Company acquired Flomatic asqfdts acquisition of Danfoss Socla S.A.S. (29¢h April 2011. The Company
evaluated the operations of Flomatic and determihatlit would not have a substantial continuingpirement in Flomatic’s operations and
cash flows. As a result, Flomatic’s cash flows apdrations were eliminated from the continuing afiens of the Company and classified as
discontinued operations for all periods presented.
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Pretax profit or losses in discontinued operatiammsas follows:

Third Quarter Ended Nine Months Ended
September 29 September 30 September 29 September 30
2013 2012 2013 2012
(in millions)
Flomatic pretax profit in discontinued operatic $ — 8 04 $ — 8 1.1
Austroflex pretax (loss) profit in discontinued opons (2.7) 0.2 (2.9 (0.1
Total pretax (loss) profit in discontinued operat $ 2.0 $ 0.6 $ 29 $ 1.C
Revenues reported in discontinued operations afi@laws:
Third Quarter Ended Nine Months Ended
September 29 September 30 September 29 September 30
2013 2012 2013 2012
(in millions)
Flomatic revenue $ — 8 34 $ — 8 10.1
Austroflex revenue 1.8 5.C 9.5 13.¢
Total revenue: $ 1€ §$ 84 $ 9.5 $ 23.7

4. Financial Instruments and Derivative Instruments

The Company measures certain financial assetsaitities at fair value on a recurring basis, udihg deferred compensation plan assets
and related liability, and contingent consideratidhere were no designated cash flow hedges aspéber 29, 2013 and December 31,
2012. The fair values of these certain financésleds and liabilities were determined using thieidhg inputs at September 29, 2013 and
December 31, 2012:

Fair Value Measurements at September 29, 2013 Usin
Quoted Prices in

Active
Markets for Identical Significant Other Significant
Observable Unobservable
Assets Inputs Inputs
Total (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
(in millions)
Assets
Plan asset for deferred compensation(1) $ 45 $ 45 — $ —
Total assets $ 45 % 45 % — 8 =
Liabilities
Plan liability for deferred compensation| $ 45 $ 45 % — 3 =
Contingent consideration(3) 4.C — — 4.C
Total liabilities $ 8L $ 45 $ — 3 4.C
Fair Value Measurements at December 31, 2012 Usin
Significant Other Significant
Quoted Prices in Active Observable Unobservable
Markets for Identical Assets Inputs Inputs
Total (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
(in millions)
Assets
Plan asset for deferred compensation(1) $ 42 $ 42 $ — $ —
Total assets $ 42 $ 42 $ — $ =
Liabilities
Plan liability for deferred compensation| $ 42 $ 42 $ — 3 =
Contingent consideration(3) 5.2 — — 5.2
Total liabilities $ 94 $ 42 $ — 3 5.2

(1) Included in other, net on the Company’s consolid&@ance sheet.
(2) Included in accrued compensation and benefits elfCttmpany’s consolidated balance sheet.
(3) Included in other noncurrent liabilities and acch@xpenses and other liabilities on the Companyrsclidated balance sheet.
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The table below provides a summary of the changésiri value of all financial assets and liabiltimeasured at fair value on a recurring t
using significant unobservable inputs (Level 3)tfor period December 31, 2012 to September 29,.2013

Total realized and
unrealized (gains)

Balance Purchases losses included in: Balance
December 31 sales, Comprehensive September 29
2012 settlements, net Earnings income 2013
(in millions)
Contingent consideratic $ 52 $ 12 $ 023 $ 03 % 4.C

In connection with the tekmar acquisition in Jayu2012, a contingent liability of $5.1 million wascognized as the estimate of the
acquisition date fair value of the contingent cdesation. This liability was classified as Levalidder the fair value hierarchy as it was based
on the probability of achievement of a future parfance metric as of the date of the acquisitioriciwlvas not observable in the market.
Failure to meet the performance metrics would redhis liability to zero, while complete achievernemuld increase this liability to the full
remaining purchase price of CAD $8.2 million. A fion of the contingent consideration was paid auirdy 2013, in the amount of $1.2
million, based on performance metrics achieveddih22 The contingent liability was increased by $@iBion during the nine month period
based on performance metrics achieved to date.

Short-term investment securities as of DecembeP312 consist of a certificate of deposit with enagning maturity of greater than three
months at the date of purchase, for which the aagrgmount is a reasonable estimate of fair valligere were no short-term investment
securities as of September 29, 2013.

Cash equivalents consist of instruments with remgimaturities of three months or less at the dapurchase and consist primarily of
certificates of deposit and money market fundswbich the carrying amount is a reasonable estim@tair value.

The Company uses financial instruments from timenb@ to enhance its ability to manage risk, inatgdoreign currency and commodity
pricing exposures, which exist as part of its ongdiusiness operations. The use of derivativessagthe Company to counterparty credit
risk for nonperformance and to market risk relatedhanges in currency exchange rates and commpuitys. The Company manages its
exposure to counterparty credit risk through diifieition of counterparties. The Company’s coundetigs in derivative transactions are
substantial commercial banks with significant eigreze using such derivative instruments. The impé&atarket risk on the fair value and
cash flows of the Company’s derivative instrumestsionitored and the Company restricts the useenfdtive financial instruments to
hedging activities. The Company does not enterdotatracts for trading purposes nor does the Cognpater into any contracts for
speculative purposes. The use of derivative instnigis approved by senior management under wgttéfelines.

The Company has exposure to a number of foreigrecay rates, including the Canadian Dollar, theoEthe Chinese Yuan and the British
Pound Sterling. To manage this risk, the Compamegaly uses a layering methodology whereby aktiekof any quarter the Company has
generally entered into forward exchange contratislwhedge approximately 50% of the projected auspany purchase transactions for
next twelve months. The Company primarily uses stiategy for purchases between Canada and thélbeSaverage volume of contracts
can vary but generally is approximately $2 milltor$10 million in open contracts at the end of given quarter. At September 29, 2013, the
Company had contracts for notional amounts aggiregst $2.3 million. The Company accounts for ibevard exchange contracts as an
economic hedge. Realized and unrealized gainscmsés$ on the contracts are recognized in othesrfiag expense in the consolidated
statement of operations. These contracts do ng¢ciihe Company to significant market risk frontleange movement because they offset
gains and losses on the related foreign currenogrdéated transactions.

Fair Value

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalshtst-term investments, trade receivables and fpagiables approximate fair value
because of the short maturity of these financistrimments.

The fair values of the Company’s 5.85% senior ndtes2016, and 5.05% senior notes due 2020, aesl lmasa discounted cash flow model
using comparable industrial companies, the Compacngdit metrics, the Company’s size, as well asecti market interest rates quoted in
active markets and are classified within Level 2haf valuation hierarchy. The fair value of then@any’s variable rate debt approximates
carrying value. The carrying amount and the estah&ir market value of the Company’s long-termtdetriuding the current portion, are as
follows:

September 29 December 31
2013 2012
(in millions)
Carrying amoun $ 308.. $ 384.¢
Estimated fair valu $ 336.: $ 420.¢
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5. Restructuring and Other Charges, Net

The Company’s Board of Directors approves all magstructuring programs that involve the discordimee of product lines or the shutdown
of facilities. From time to time, the Company takelditional restructuring actions, including inutary terminations that are not part of a
major program. The Company accounts for theses éoshe period that the individual employees artfied or the liability is incurred.
These costs are included in restructuring and atharges in the Company’s consolidated statemdmpgearations.

On July 30, 2013, the Board of Directors authorittedinitiation of a restructuring program with pest to our European operations to reduce
our European manufacturing footprint by approxiryal®%, improve organizational and operationalaiincy and better align costs with
expected revenues in response to changing markditmms. The restructuring program (‘2013 Acti9nis expected to include a pre-tax
charge to earnings totaling approximately $14.0iom) approximately $9.8 million of which is expedtto be recorded through fiscal 2014
and the remainder of which is expected to be remmboiiring fiscal 2015. This total charge is expédb include costs for severance benefits,
relocation, clean-up, professional fees and cedaset write-downs. The total net after-tax chéogéhe restructuring program is expected to
be approximately $10.0 million. The restructurprggram is expected to be completed by the endeofdurth quarter of fiscal 2015. Cert
aspects of the restructuring program are subjeftirtber analysis and determinations by local managnt and consultation and negotiation
with various workers’ councils.

The Company also periodically initiates other awiavhich are not part of a major program. In 2@01,2 and the first nine months of 2013,

the Company initiated restructuring activities imr&pe and North America to relocate certain martufaw activities. Total expected costs
are $4.4 million, including severance and relogatiosts. The net after tax charge of $3.1 milliat lve incurred through mid-2014.

A summary of the pre-tax cost by restructuring pang is as follows:

Third Quarter Ended Nine Months Ended
September 29 September 30 September 29 September 30
2013 2012 2013 2012
(in millions)

Restructuring cost:

2011 Actions $ — $ — 3 — 3 0.€

2013 Actions 2.t — 3.1 —

Other Actions 0.2 0.5 3.8 2.2
Total restructuring charges 2.8 0.t 7.C 2.8
Adjustment related to contingent liabilit

reduction — (2.0 — (1.0
Total restructuring and other charges, net 28 $ 05 s 7C $ 1.8

The Company recorded pre-tax restructuring andrath&rges, net in its business segments as follows:

Third Quarter Ended Nine Months Ended
September 29 September 30 September 29 September 30
2013 2012 2013 2012
(in millions)
North America $ — 3 0.9 $ 02 % 0.1
EMEA 2.8 0.3 6.7 1.7
Total $ 2& % (0.5) $ 7.C $ 1.8

Adjustment to gain on disposal of busindDuring the quarter ended September 30, 2012, timep@ny recorded a charge of $1.6 million
related to an adjustment to the gain on disposalarijin Watts Valve Company Ltd. (TWVC) within thesia segment. In 2011, the Comp
had sold its equity ownership and remaining assfetdVVC and recognized a net pre-tax gain of $7ilfian and an after-tax gain of
approximately $11.4 million relating mainly to thecognition of a cumulative translation adjustmemd a tax benefit related to the revers:
a tax claw back in China. This gain was adjuste20h2.
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2013 Actions

Details of the Company’s 2013 European footprimigpam reserve, which for the nine months endedeBaper 29, 2013 only relates to
severance, is as follows:

Nine Months Ended
September, 201!

(in millions)
Balance at March 31, 20: $ —
Net pre-tax restructuring charge 0.€
Utilization and foreign currency impa (0.9
Balance at June 30, 20 $ 0.3
Net pre-tax restructuring charges 2.5
Utilization and foreign currency impact (0.6)
Balance at September 29, 2013 $ 2.C

The following table summarizes total expected, ineth and remaining pre-tax costs for 2013 Eurofeatprint program actions by type, and
all attributable to the EMEA reportable segment:

Facility
Legal and Asset exit
Severance consultancy write-downs and other Total
(in millions)
Expected cost $ 12.C $ 1€ $ 02 $ 02 $ 14.C
Costs incurre—second quarter 201 (0.6) — — — (0.6)
Costs incurrec— third quarter 2013 (2.5) — — — (2.5
Remaining costs at September 29, 20: $ 8S § 1€ $ 02 § 02 $ 10.€
6. Earnings per Share
The following tables set forth the reconciliatidintloe calculation of earnings per share:
For the Third Quarter Ended September 29, 201. For the Third Quarter Ended September 30, 201:
Income Shares Per Share Income Shares Per Share
(Numerator) (Denominator) Amount (Numerator) (Denominator) Amount
(amounts in millions, except per share amounts
Basic EPS
Net income:
Continuing operation $ 17.5 354 $ 0.4¢ $ 18.5 351 $ 0.52
Discontinued operations (2.1 (0.06 0.4 0.01
Net income $ 15.4 $ 0.4: $ 18.7 $ 0.5¢
Effect of dilutive securitie
Common stock equivalents 0.2 0.1
Diluted EPS
Net income!
Continuing operation $ 17t $ 0.4¢ $ 18.2 $ 0.52
Discontinued operations (2.1 (0.06) 0.4 0.01
Net income $ 15.4 35e $ 04: % 18.7 352 $ 0.5t
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Options to purchase 0.2 million and 0.3 million Esaof Class A common stock were outstanding duhieghird quarters of 2013 and 2012,
respectively, but were not included in the compateof diluted EPS because to do so would be ahtiree.

For the First Nine Months Ended September 29, 201 For the First Nine Months Ended September 30, 201
Income Shares Per Share Income Shares Per Share
(Numerator) (Denominator) Amount (Numerator) (Denominator) Amount
(amounts in millions, except per share amounts
Basic EPS
Net income:
Continuing operation  $ 52. 7 355 $ 14¢ $ 52.2 36.1 $ 1.44
Discontinued operatiol (2. (0.06) 0.7 0.02
Net income $ 504 4 $ 14z $ 52.¢ $ 1.4¢€
Effect of dilutive
securities
Common stock
equivalents 0.1 0.2
Diluted EPS
Net income:
Continuing operation  $ 52.7 $ 14¢ % 52.2 $ 1.44
Discontinued operatiol (2.9 (0.07) 0.7 0.02
Net income $ 504 356 $ 141 $ 52.¢ 36.2 $ 1.4¢€

Options to purchase 0.3 million and 0.3 milliongsaof Class A common stock were outstanding dutiedirst nine months of 2013 and
2012, respectively, but were not included in thenpatation of diluted EPS because to do so wouldrtiedilutive.

On April 30, 2013, the Company announced that @arB of Directors has authorized the repurchasgad $90 million of the Company’s
Class A common stock from time to time on the opemket or in privately negotiated transactions.e Timing and number of any shares
repurchased will be determined by the Company’sagament based on its evaluation of market conditid®epurchases may also be made
under a Rule 10b5-1 plan, which would permit shéwdse repurchased when the Company might othetvagerecluded from doing so under
insider trading laws. The repurchase program neaguspended or discontinued at any time, subjebetterms of any Rule 10b5-1 plan the
Company may enter into with respect to the repigelmogram. During the quarter ended Septemb&@S, the Company repurchased
approximately 189,000 shares of Class A commorksiba cost of approximately $10.0 million. Durithg first nine month of 2013, the
Company repurchased approximately 402,000 sharétass A common stock at a cost of approximatel.&aillion.

On May 16, 2012, the Board of Directors authoriaestock repurchase program of up to two millionreh@f the Company’s Class A
common stock. The stock repurchase program wagleted in July 2012, as the Company repurchasedrttiee 2.0 million shares of
Class A common stock at a cost of approximately.&6fillion

7. Segment Information

The Company operates in three geographic segnméotth America, EMEA, and Asia. Each of these segmenmanaged separately and has
separate financial results that are reviewed byCthmpany’s chief operating decision-maker. All mtempany sales transactions have been
eliminated. Sales by region are based upon locatitine entity recording the sale. The accountialicpes for each segment are the same as
those described in the summary of significant anting policies.

The following is a summary of the Company’s sigrafit accounts and balances by segment, reconoitbé tonsolidated totals:

Third Quarter Ended Nine Months Ended
September 29 September 30 September 29 September 30
2013 2012 2013 2012
(in millions)
Net Sales
North America $ 220.F $ 204.C $ 657.¢ $ 629.1
EMEA 142.7 141t 416.C 425.(
Asia 8.€ 7.3 23.€ 18.¢
Consolidated net sales $ 371.¢ $ 352.6 $ 1,097t $ 1,072.¢
Operating income (lost
North America $ 235 $ 255 % 79.C $ 71.¢
EMEA 13.t 14.¢ 34.2 40.C
Asia 2.C 0.8 7.3 4.2
Subtotal reportable segments 39.C 41.2 120.t 115.¢
Corporate (*) (8.8) (8.7) (26.1) (23.9)

Consolidated operating income 30.2 32.t 94.4 92.¢



Interest incomi
Interest expens
Other income (expense), net

Income from continuing operations before incomesax

Capital Expenditure
North America
EMEA
Asia
Consolidated capital expenditures

Depreciation and Amortizatic
North America
EMEA
Asia
Consolidated depreciation and amortization

Identifiable Assets (at end of peric
North America
EMEA
Asia
Discontinued operations
Consolidated identifiable assets

Property, plant and equipment, net (at end of pg
North America
EMEA
Asia

Consolidated property, plant and equipment, net

0.1 0.1 0.4 0.
(5.2) (6.1) (16.6) (18.9
(0.3) 0.€ (1.7) 1.5
24.¢ 27.1 76E $ 76.
2.4 5.7 152 $ 10.C
2. 2.9 6.3 7.E
0.2 0.5 1.1 1.1
4. 9.1 22€ 3 18.€
5.2 5.C 155 $ 14.€
6.4 6.2 19.2 19.¢
0.5 0.5 1.8 1.5
12.1 11.7 364 $ 36.C
703.6 $ 794.¢

864.F 781.

1225 91.:

— 23.

1,690.c $ 1,691.(

847 $ 76.%

120.1 125.:

14.€ 14.€

2192 $ 216.1

* Corporate expenses are primarily for administeacompensation expense, internal controls cpstéessional fees, including legal and
audit expenses, shareholder services and benefinadration costs. These costs are not allocatéld geographic segments as they are

viewed as corporate functions that support allvitis.

The above operating segments are presented onsacbasistent with the presentation included inGoenpany’s December 31, 2012
consolidated financial statements included in itéal Report on Form 10-K.
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The following includes U.S. net sales and U.S. prip plant and equipment of the Company’s Northetice segment:

Third Quarter Ended Nine Months Ended
September 29 September 30 September 29 September 30
2013 2012 2013 2012
(in millions)
U.S. net sale $ 198.C $ 181« $ 592.¢ $ 564.<
U.S. property, plant and equipment (at end of mBi $ 79.7 $ 70.€

The following includes intersegment sales for N@ktherica, EMEA and Asia:

Third Quarter Ended Nine Months Ended
September 29 September 30 September 29 September 30
2013 2012 2013 2012
(in millions)
Intersegment Sale
North America $ 12 $ 12 % 3¢ $ 3.€
EMEA 2.€ 3.3 7.7 7.6
Asia 39.7 35.€ 128.¢ 102.%
Intersegment sales $ 43.€ $ 405 $ 140.. $ 114.1

The EMEA segment includes $1.3 million in assetd ffar sale at September 29, 2013. North Ameregngent includes $2.4 million in
assets held for sale at September 30, 2012.
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8. Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss)

Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) stssf the following:

Foreign Accumulated Other
Currency Pension Comprehensive
Translation Adjustment Income (Loss)
(in millions)

Balance December 31, 201 $ 144 $ (25.2) $ (10.¢)
Change in period (19.9 0.2 (19.9)
Balance March 31, 201 $ 55 % (25.0 $ (30.5)
Change in period 7.5 0.1 7.€
Balance June 30, 201 $ 2C $ (24.9 $ (22.9)
Change in period 24.4 0.1 24.5
Balance September 29, 2013 $ 26.4 $ (24.¢) $ 1.€
Balance December 31, 20 $ 01 $ (19.1) $ (29.0
Change in period 16.5 0.2 16.7
Balance April 1, 2012 $ 16.€ $ (18.9 $ (2.9
Change in period (39.9) 0.1 (39.6)
Balance July 1, 2012 $ (23.0) $ (18.¢) $ (41.9
Change in period 25.1 0.2 25.2
Balance September 30, 2012 $ 2C $ (18.¢) $ (16.€)

9. Debt

The Company’s credit agreement (the Credit Agreémprovides for a multi-currency $300.0 millioivé-year, senior unsecured revolving
credit facility which may be increased by an aduditil $150.0 million under certain circumstances sulgject to the terms of the Credit
Agreement. The Credit Agreement has a sublimitpofau$75.0 million in letters of credit. The Credigreement matures on June 18, 2015.

Borrowings outstanding under the Credit Agreemeatrlinterest at a fluctuating rate per annum etgu@) in the case of Eurocurrency rate
loans, the British Bankers’ Association LIBOR ratas an applicable percentage, ranging from 1.702:30%, determined by reference to
the Company’s consolidated leverage ratio pluthéncase of certain lenders, a mandatory costledéclin accordance with the terms of the
Credit Agreement, or (i) in the case of base lad@s and swing line loans, the highest of (af¢deral funds rate plus 0.5%, (b) the rate of
interest in effect for such day as announced bykBdmerica, N.A. as its “prime rate,” and (c) tBeitish Bankers’ Association LIBOR rate
plus 1.0%, plus an applicable percentage, rangom D.70% to 1.30%, determined by reference tahimpanys consolidated leverage ra
In addition to paying interest under the Credit égmnent, the Company is also required to pay cefgamin connection with the credit
facility, including, but not limited to, a facilitiee and letter of credit fees. Under the Credite®gnent, the Company is required to satisfy and
maintain specified financial ratios and other ficiahcondition tests. The Company may repay laaristanding under the Credit Agreement
from time to time without premium or penalty, otllean customary breakage costs, if any, and sutgjgbe terms of the Credit Agreement.
As of September 29, 2013, the Company was in campd with all covenants related to the Credit Agrelet and had $270.4 million of
unused and available credit under the Credit Ageerand $29.6 million of stand-by letters of creglitstanding on the Credit Agreement.
The Company did not have any borrowings outstandirdgr the Credit Agreement at September 29, 2013.

The Company is a party to several note agreemerftgther detailed in Note 10 of Notes to Consd#daFinancial Statements of the Annual
Report on Form 16 for the year ended December 31, 2012. Theseawtements require the Company to maintain a fikedge coverag
ratio of consolidated EBITDA plus consolidated rerpense during the period to consolidated fixemrghs. Consolidated fixed charges are
the sum of consolidated interest expense for thieg@nd consolidated rent expense. As of Septe2®e2013, the Company was in
compliance with all covenants regarding these agteements. The Company repaid the $75.0 milfameecured senior notes that matured
on May 15, 2013 during the period ended June 303 2@dth available cash.
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10. Contingencies and Environmental Remediation
Accrual and Disclosure Polic

The Company is a defendant in numerous legal nsadtésing from its ordinary course of operationsjuding those involving product
liability, environmental matters and commercialpdites.

The Company reviews its lawsuits and other legat@edings on an ongoing basis and follows apprigpsiecounting guidance when making
accrual and disclosure decisions. The Companypléstias accruals for matters when the Company sssdlsat it is probable that a loss has
been incurred and the amount of the loss can ls®nably estimated, net of any applicable insur@moeeeds. The Company does not
establish accruals for such matters when the Comngaes not believe both that it is probable thimisa has been incurred and the amount of
the loss can be reasonably estimated. The Compasgessment of whether a loss is probable is loasiésl assessment of the ultimate
outcome of the matter following all appeals.

Under the FASB issued ASC 450 “Contingencies”, @meis “reasonably possible” if “the chance of thire event or events occurring is
more than remote but less than likely” and an eigfremote” if “the chance of the future eventaments occurring is slight”. Thus,
references to the upper end of the range of rebt®passible loss for cases in which the Compampis to estimate a range of reasonably
possible loss mean the upper end of the rangessfftor cases for which the Company believes tlkeofisoss is more than slight.

There may continue to be exposure to loss in exafeasy amount accrued. When it is possible tomege the reasonably possible loss or
range of loss above the amount accrued for theensatisclosed, that estimate is aggregated antbsést The Company records legal costs
associated with its legal contingencies as incuregdept for legal costs associated with prodadtility claims which are included in the
product liability accrual.

As of September 29, 2013, the Company estimateéshtbaggregate amount of reasonably possibledasscess of the amount accrued fo
legal contingencies is approximately $6.5 millioeax. With respect to the estimate of reasonpbfsible loss, management has estimated
the upper end of the range of reasonably possiskebased on (i) the amount of money damages dainteere applicable, (i) the allegatic
and factual development to date, (iii) availabléedses based on the allegations, and/or (iv) gtbtantially liable parties. This estimate is
based upon currently available information andulgect to significant judgment and a variety ofimaptions, and known and unknown
uncertainties. The matters underlying the estimaltechange from time to time, and actual resuatiay vary significantly from the current
estimate. In the event of an unfavorable outcammnie or more of the matters described below, tiveate liability may be in excess of
amounts currently accrued, if any, and may be rizterthe Company’s operating results or cash §léor a particular quarterly or annual
period. However, based on information currentlpwn to it, management believes that the ultimateaue of all matters, as they are
resolved over time, is not likely to have a mateaidverse effect on the financial condition of @@mpany, though the outcome could be
material to the Company’s operating results for pasticular period depending, in part, upon therafpeg results for such period.

Trabakoolas et al., v, Watts Water Technologies., ket al.,

On March 8, 2012, Watts Water Technologies, Inafté/Regulator Co., and Watts Plumbing Technolo@iagho) Co., Ltd., among other
companies, were named as defendants in a putattienwide class action complaint filed in the UDsstrict Court for the Northern District

of California seeking to recover damages and atfl@f based on the alleged failure of toilet cartoes. The complaint seeks among other
items, damages in an unspecified amount, replacecosts, injunctive relief, and attorneys’ fees andts. No class certification hearing has
been scheduled and the matter is currently in ieodery phase. On August 22, 2013, the Courestdlye action for 45 days, to allow the
parties to explore the possibility of settleme®in October 8, 2013, this stay was extended untilektoer 7, 2013, in order to allow the
parties additional time to explore settlement. Twenpany intends to request a further extensidhestay for this purpose. If the stay is
lifted, the Company intends to continue to vigotgu®ntest the allegations in this case.

The Company is unable to estimate a range of reddppossible loss for the above matter in whiclndges have not been specified bece
(i) the proceedings are in the early stages;H@ye is uncertainty as to the likelihood of a clsimg certified or the ultimate size of the class;
(iii) there are significant factual issues to bsalged; and (iv) there are novel legal issues mtese

Product Liability

The Company is subject to a variety of potentailities in connection with product liability caseThe Company maintains product liability
and other insurance coverage, which the Comparngvesl to be generally in accordance with industacfices. For product liability cases in
the U.S., management establishes its productitiabitcrual, which includes legal costs associatild accrued claims, by utilizing third-
party actuarial valuations which incorporate his@lrtrend factors and the Company’s specific ckaarperience derived from loss reports
provided by third-party administrators. In otheuntries, the Company maintains insurance covesditerelatively high deductible
payments, as product liability claims tend to belsen than those experienced in the U.S. Changései nature of claims or the actual
settlement amounts could affect the adequacy sfasiimate and require changes to the provisioesalse the liability is an estimate, the
ultimate liability may be more or less than repdrte

Environmental Remediatic

The Company has been named as a potentially rebpoparty with respect to a limited number of itlBed contaminated sites. The levels
of contamination vary significantly from site tdesas do the related levels of remediation effoBavironmental liabilitie:
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are recorded based on the most probable costpviiinor on the estimated minimum cost of remedmatidccruals are not discounted to their
present value, unless the amount and timing of edipgres are fixed and reliably determinable. Tmenpany accrues estimated
environmental liabilities based on assumptions civlasire subject to a number of factors and unceitain Circumstances that can affect the
reliability and precision of these estimates ineludentification of additional sites, environmermadulations, level of cleanup required,
technologies available, number and financial caoibf other contributors to remediation and timeetiperiod over which remediation may
occur. The Company recognizes changes in estiraatasw remediation requirements are defined aepasinformation becomes available.

Asbestos Litigatiol

The Company is defending 42 lawsuits in differemtsdictions, alleging injury or death as a resfiléxposure to asbestos. The complaints in
these cases typically name a large number of daféadnd do not identify any particular Companydpits as a source of asbestos expo:
To date, the Company has obtained a dismissaldryeaase before it has reached trial because disgdnas failed to yield evidence of
substantial exposure to any Company products.

Other Litigation

Other lawsuits and proceedings or claims, arisingifthe ordinary course of operations, are alsalipgnor threatened against the Company.
11. Defined Benefit Plans

The Company sponsors funded and unfunded non-batitrg defined benefit pension plans that togetioser substantially all of its U.S.
employees. Benefits are based primarily on yeasenfice and employees’ compensation. The fundiligypof the Company for these plans
is to contribute an annual amount that does na¢exkthe maximum amount that can be deducted ferdéthcome tax purposes. On
October 31, 2011, the Company’s Board of Directmted to cease accruals effective December 31, @fdér both the Company’s Pension
Plan and Supplemental Employees Retirement Plan.

The components of net periodic benefit cost afelésns:

Third Quarter Ended Nine Months Ended
September 29 September 30 September 29 September 30
2013 2012 2013 2012
(in millions)
Service cos— administrative cost $ 01 $ 02 $ 03 $ 0.€
Interest costs on benefits obligati 1.4 1.4 4.2 4.2
Expected return on asst 2.7 1.7 (5.2 (5.2
Net actuarial loss amortizatic 0.2 0.1 0.€ 0.4
Net periodic benefit cost $ — $ — $ — $ —

The information related to the Company'’s pensiard&icash flow is as follows:

Nine Months Ended
September 29, 201 September 30, 201
(in millions)

Employer contribution $ 0.€ $ 0.€

The Company expects to contribute approximatel? $dillion to its pension plans for the remainde261.3.

12. Subsequent Events

Dividend Declarec

On October 29, 2013, the Company declared a qladiidend of thirteen cents ($0.13) per shareeanh outstanding share of Class A
common stock and Class B common stock payable aeiber 29, 2013 to stockholders of record at theecbf business on November 18,

2013.
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Item 2. Managements Discussion And Analysis Of Financial Condition Ad Results Of Operations

Overview

The following discussion and analysis are proviteihcrease understanding of, and should be readrijunction with, the accompanying
unaudited consolidated financial statements anelsnoln this quarterly report on Form 10-Q, refesmto “the Company,” “Watts,” “we,”
“us” or “our” refer to Watts Water Technologiesclrand its consolidated subsidiaries.

We operate on a 52-week calendar year ending oerbieer 31. Any quarterly data contained in this @by Report on Form 10-Q
generally reflects the results of operations f@éBaveek period or 39-week period, respectively.

We are a leading supplier of products for use envtlater quality, water safety, water flow controtlavater conservation markets in both
North America and EMEA (Europe, Middle East andiéd), with a growing presence in Asia. For over ¥88rs, we have designed ¢
manufactured products that promote comfort andygafepeople and the quality and conservation aiewased in commercial and residential
applications. We earn revenue and income almogstigi¥ely from the sale of our products. Our priraiproduct lines are:

* Residential & commercial flow control products —elmdes products typically sold into plumbing and Wwater applications
such as backflow preventers, water pressure regaldemperature and pressure relief valves, agninthstatic mixing valves.

e HVAC & gas products — includes hydronic and elechéating systems for under-floor radiant applarai hydronic pump
groups for boiler manufacturers and alternativegneontrol packages, and flexible stainless sterhectors for natural and
liquid propane gas in commercial food service asidential applications. HVAC is an acronym foatieg, ventilation and air
conditioning.

» Drains & water re-use products — includes draina@elucts and engineered rain water harvestingisokifor commercial,
industrial, marine and residential applications.

»  Water quality products — includes point-of-use aoiht-of-entry water filtration, conditioning and scale peation systems fc
both commercial and residential applications.

Our business is reported in three geographic setgmidorth America, EMEA and Asia. We distribute quoducts through three primary
distribution channels: wholesale, do-it-yourselfYDand original equipment manufacturers (OEMsjetast rates, the unemployment rate
and credit availability have an indirect effecttbe demand for our products due to the effect satds have on the number of new residential
and commercial construction starts and remodelingepts. All of these activities have an impactoom levels of sales and earnings. An
additional factor that has an effect on our sates@perating income is fluctuation in foreign cmeg exchange rates, as approximately 47%
of our sales in the third quarter ended Septem®e2@13, and certain portions of our costs, asseddiabilities are denominated in currenc
other than the U.S. dollar.

During the third quarter of 2013, sales increasE@iGmillion as compared to the third quarter of20primarily from an organic increase in
sales of $12.7 million and a net increase in sdirsto foreign exchange of $6.3 million. The fgreexchange impact was primarily due to
the appreciation of the euro against the U.S. dolaZrganic sales increased by 3.6% compared tyd@s’s comparable period, primarily
from increased sales in North America. Organiesal the third quarter of 2013 increased in Néwtterica by $17.5 million, or 8.6%, and
increased in Asia by $1.1 million, or 15.1%, offbgta decrease in EMEA of $5.9 million, or 4.2%rg@énic sales growth excludes the
impacts of acquisitions, divestitures and foreigohange from year-over-year comparisons. We belibis provides investors with a more
complete understanding of underlying sales treydsroviding sales growth on a consistent basisos&margins decreased in the third
quarter of 2013 as compared to 2012 by 0.2 pergergaints. The decrease is due primarily to inifficies in North America related to our
lead free transition program and retail pricinggsree offset partially by overall product mix andduction efficiencies in EMEA. Operating
income of $30.2 million decreased by 7.1% in thedtuarter of 2013 as compared to the third quaft®012, driven by increased SG&A
costs which more than offset increased gross préfireign exchange movements were immaterial tpegear.

We believe that the factors relating to our futgrewth include the demand for clean water arouedatbrld, a healthy economic environment
that fosters residential and commercial constractiegulatory requirements relating to the quaditg conservation of water, continued
enforcement of plumbing and building codes, oulitslto grow organically in select attractive marlsegments and geographic regions and
the successful completion of selective acquisititwagh in our core markets as well as in new complagtary markets. Our acquisition
strategy focuses on businesses that manufactuierige brand name products that address our thefweater quality, water conservation,
water safety, water flow control, HVAC and relatamnplementary markets. We target businesses thigtravide us with one or more of the
following: an entry into new markets, an increasshelf space with existing customers, a new orawvgd technology or an expansion of the
breadth of our water quality, water conservatioatex safety and water flow control and HVAC producir the residential and commercial
construction markets. We have completed 36 adéprisisince 1999.

Products representing a majority of our sales alogest to regulatory standards and code enforcemdrith typically require that these
products meet stringent performance criteria. Tiogretvith our commissioned manufacturers’ represems, we have consistently advocated
for the development and enforcement of such plumbodes. We are focused on maintaining stringealitgicontrol and testing procedures
at each of our manufacturing facilities in ordentanufacture products in compliance with code negoénts and take advantage of the
resulting demand for compliant products. We beliéaat the product development, product testing lséipaand investment in plant ar



equipment needed to manufacture products in cong#iavith code requirements, represent a competitivantage for us.

Historically, we have faced a risk relating to ability to respond to raw material cost fluctuasolVe manage this risk by monitoring related
market prices, working with our suppliers to acki¢ire maximum level of stability in their costs aethted pricing, seeking alternative
supply sources when necessary, purchasing forwarinitments for raw materials, when available, impdating cost reduction programs
and passing increases in costs to our customéhe iform of price increases.

Another risk we face in all areas of our businessompetition. We consider brand preference, eeging specifications, code requirements,
price, technological expertise, delivery times,lijuand breadth of product offerings to be thenary competitive factors. We believe that
product development, product testing capabilitgdolth of product offerings and investment in pkmd equipment needed to manufacture
products in compliance with code requirements regmea competitive advantage for us. We expeqiead approximately $34 million duri
2013 for purchases of capital equipment, includingcontinuing conversion of a portion of our mauiéiring facilities to lead free
production.

Recent Events
Dividend Declarec

On October 29, 2013, we declared a quarterly diddef thirteen cents ($0.13) per share on eachandisg share of Class A common stock
and Class B common stock payable on November 28 fDstockholders of record at the close of bissiremn November 18, 2013.
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Results of Operations
Third Quarter Ended September 29, 2013 Compared tdhird Quarter Ended September 30, 2012

Net Sales Our business is reported in three geographic satgnNorth America, EMEA and Asia. Our net safesach of these segments
for each of the third quarters of 2013 and 2012evesr follows:

Third Quarter Ended Third Quarter Ended % Change to
September 29, 2013 September 30, 2012 Consolidated
Net Sales % Sales Net Sales % Sales Change Net Sales
(dollars in millions)
North America $ 220.5 59.2%% 204.C 57.€%$ 16.£ 4.7%
EMEA 1425 38.4 1415 40.1 1.2 0.2
Asia 8.€ 28 7.3 2.1 & 0.4
Total $ 371.¢ 100.%$ 352.¢ 100.(%$ 19.C 5.4%

The change in net sales was attributable to thevioig:

Change Change
As a % of Consolidated Net Sale As a % of Segment Net Sale
North North North
America EMEA Asia Total America EMEA Asia Total America EMEA Asia
(dollars in millions)

Organic $ 175 % 5.9% 1.1 $ 127 50% (1.7)% 0.%% 3.6% 8.6% (4.2% 15.1%
Foreign exchang (1.0) 7.1 0.2 6.2 (0.9) 2.C 0.1 1.€ (0.5 5.C 2.7
Total $ 165$ 123 1.2 $ 19. 4.7%  0.%% 0.4% 54% 81% 0.8  17.t%

Our products are sold to wholesalers, DIY chaing, @EMs. The change in organic net sales by chamaglattributable to the following:

Change
As a % of Prior Year Sales
Wholesale DIY OEMSs Total Wholesale DIY OEMSs
(dollars in millions)
North America $ 141 $ 19 $ 1t $ 17t 9.€% 4.7% 9.0%
EMEA 0.€ (0.2) (6.9) (5.9) 0.¢ (.0 (9.1
Asia 1.1 — — 1.1 15.1 — —
Total $ 156 $ 17 $ (48 $ 127 7.1% 3.8% (5.6%

Organic net sales in the North America wholesalyy, &nd OEM markets increased in the third quarfe2@i3, compared to the third quarter
of 2012, mainly from increased sales in residemtiel commercial flow product lines and from ourtoogers continuing to transition to lead
free products. Pricing pressure in the retail dednffset unit volume increases during the quarter

Organic net sales in the EMEA wholesale and DIY ketiwere essentially flat in the third quarter 613 as compared to the same period in
2012 with increased drain sales in the Nordic nediieing offset partially by lower sales in Fran€&rganic net sales into the EMEA OEM
market decreased as compared to the third qudrBf¥l@ as large drains projects in 2012 did notireégain in 2013 and due to some
softening in the German market.

The net increase in sales due to foreign excharagepnimarily due to the appreciation of the euraiagt the U.S. dollar. We cannot predict
whether the euro will appreciate or depreciatersgjahe U.S. dollar in future periods or whetheaufe foreign exchange rate fluctuations will
have a positive or negative impact on our net sales

Gross Profit.Gross profit and gross profit as a percent of aktss(gross margin) for the third quarters of 2848 2012 were as follows:

Third Quarter Ended

September 29, 201. September 30, 201
(dollars in millions)
Gross profit $ 133.¢ $ 127.7
Gross margir 36.(% 36.2%

North Americi's gross margin decreased compared to the thirdejuaf 2012 due primarily to inefficiencies reldt® our lead free transition
program and retail pricing pressure offset pastiblf product mix and volume growth. EMEA’s grosangin increased primarily due to
production efficiencies offsetting lower overheda$arption related to reduced volumes.

Selling, General and Administrative Expense3elling, general and administrative, or SG&A, exges for the third quarter of 2013 increased
$9.0 million, or 9.8%, compared to the third quade2012. The increase in SG&A expenses wasatsible to the following:

(in millions) % Change




Organic $ 7.5 8.2%
Foreign exchange 1.E 1.€

Total $ 9.C 9.8%

The organic increase in SG&A expenses was primdrily to increased product liability cost of $3.8liom, increased commission and frei
costs of $2.4 million associated with increasedsahcreased personnel costs of $2.0 million anceased legal costs of $1.6 million,
partially offset by decreased bad debt expensd & ®illion and nonrecurring prior year retentiarsts of $0.8 million related to our retired
CFO. Increased product liability cost in North Amga of $3.5 million is based on an updated acalamalysis that incorporated a recent
increase in reported claims, in which the majoritiates to legacy products. Increased personnd pasnarily relate to investments in new
positions and increased stock incentive plan cds$ts.increase in legal expenses was primarily étttesnents resolved during the quarter.
The increase in SG&A expenses from foreign exchavageprimarily due to the

21




Table of Contents

appreciation of the euro against the U.S. doll&0h3. Total SG&A expenses, as a percentage ef,sakre 27.1% in the third quarter of
2013 and 26.0% in the third quarter of 2012.

Restructuring and Other Charges, N In the third quarter of 2013, we recorded a nergé of $2.8 million primarily for involuntary
terminations and other costs incurred as part oEowope restructuring plans, as compared to aftbhei€0.5 million for the third quarter of
2012. The benefit of $0.5 million related to thduetion of the expected BRAE contingent earnotility of $1.0 million offset by

involuntary terminations and other costs incurregart of our Europe and North America restructyptans. For a more detailed description
of our current restructuring plans, see Note 5 ofield to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Adjustment to Gain on Disposal of Busindn the third quarter of 2012, we incurred a $1.8iam charge related to an adjustment made to
the gain on disposal of Tianjin Watts Valve Compaty. (TWVC).

Goodwill and Other Long-Lived Asset Impairment Qe In the third quarter of 2013 we recorded asseginment charges of $0.2 millic
related to certain assets held for sale. In thd tjuarter of 2012, we recorded asset impairmeatges of $2.4 million primarily related to
goodwill impairment at BRAE of $1.0 million and &1million of impairment charges related to cer@ssets held for sale.

Operating Income. Operating income (loss) by geographic segmenti@third quarters of 2013 and 2012 were as fatow

% Change to
Consolidated
Third Quarter Ended Operating
September 29, 201. September 30, 201 Change Income
(dollars in millions)
North America $ 23t % 255 % (2.0) (6.2)%
EMEA 13.E 14.¢ (1.4) 4.9
Asia 2.C 0.8 1.2 3.7
Corporate (8.9 (8.7) (0.7) (0.3
Total $ 302 $ 32E % (2.3 (7.1)%
The increase (decrease) in operating income (Issgjributable to the following:
Change Change
As a % of Consolidated Operating Income As a % of Segment Operating Income
North North North
America EMEA Asia Corp. Total America EMEA Asia Corp. Total America EMEA Asia Corp.
(dollars in millions)

Organic $ (33 % 02 $ (04 $ (0 $ (35 (10.9% 0.5% (1.2% 0.9% (10.9% (12.9% 2.%  (50.0% 1.1%
Foreign exchang (0.2 0.6 — — 0.6 (0.6) 2.t — — 1.¢ (0.9 5.4 — —
Restructuring, impairment charges and other 1.5 (2.5) 1.€ — (0.6) 4.6 (7.7) 4.8 — 1.€ 5.¢ (16.¢) 200.( —
Total $ (203% (19 3$ 1: $ (01 $ (29 (6.2% (4.3% 3.7% (0.9% (7.)% (7.6% (9.49% _ 150.% 1.1%

The decrease in consolidated operating income wagdmarily to an increase in SG&A expenses. déerease in North America’s organic
operating income was driven by higher product lighcosts, inefficiencies related to our lead ftesnsition program and retail pricing
pressure, offset by product mix, higher sales velamd product efficiencies. The EMEA organic ofirgaincome increase was due to
productivity efficiencies, SG&A expense reducti@ml selected price increases partially offset byelogross profit from volume declines.

Interest Expenst Interest expense decreased $1.0 million, or 16fdfdhe third quarter of 2013 as compared tothtirel quarter of 2012 due
to a lower balance outstanding on our stand-bgrebf credit and the retirement in mid-May 201385 million in unsecured senior notes.

Other expense (income), neOther expense (income), net increased $0.9 mifbo the third quarter of 2013 as compared tathiirel quarter
of 2012, primarily due to foreign currency trangactiosses in Asia as a result of the appreciaticthe Chinese yuan against the U.S. dollar
in 2013.

Income Taxes Our effective income tax rate for continuing agiems decreased to 29.7% in the third quartei0@B2from 32.5% for the
third quarter of 2012. The decrease was largedytduhe revaluation of our Danish subsidiary’setefd tax liabilities as a result of a tax rate
reduction in Denmark.

Net Income Net income from continuing operations for thedljuarter of 2013 was $17.5 million, or $0.49 p@mmon share, compared to
$18.3 million, or $0.52 per common share, for thiedtquarter of 2012. Results for the third quade2013 include an afteax charge of $2.
million, or $0.06 per common share, for restruetgrand other charges and goodwill and other lonedliasset impairment charges, compared
to $3.0 million, or $0.09 per common share, forttied quarter of 2012.
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Nine Months Ended September 29, 2013 Compared to ™ Months Ended September 30, 2012

Net Sales Our business is reported in three geographic satsnNorth America, EMEA and Asia. Our net salesach of these segments
for each of the first nine months of 2013 and 2@&2e as follows:

Nine Months Ended Nine Months Ended % Change to
September 29, 201. September 30, 201 Consolidated
Net Sales % Sales Net Sales % Sales Change Net Sales
(dollars in millions)
North America $ 657.¢ 59.¢% $ 629.1 58.6% $ 28.¢ 2.1%
EMEA 416. 37.¢ 425.( 39.€ (9.0 (0.8)
Asia 23.€ 2.2 18.¢ 1.8 4.6 0.4
Total $ 1,097t 100.(% $ 1,072.¢ 100.(% $ 24.€ 2.2%

The change in net sales was attributable to thevioig:

Change Change
As a % of Consolidated Net Sale As a % of Segment Net Sale
North North North
America EMEA Asia Total America EMEA Asia Total America EMEA Asia
(dollars in millions)
Organic $ 294 $ (195 $ 45 $ 14.4 2.1% 1.9% 0.4% 1.2% 4.7% (4.6)% 23.9%
Foreign exchang 1.3 10.t 0.2 9.5 (0.3 1.C — 0.¢ (0.2 2.E 1.€
Acquired 0.7 — — 0.7 0.1 — — 0.1 0.1 — —
Total $ 28.8 $ 9.0 $ 4.8 $ 24.€ 2.7% (0.% 0.4% 2.2% 4.€% (2.9)% 25.5%

Our products are sold to wholesalers, DIY chaing, @EMs. The change in organic net sales by chamaglattributable to the following:

Change
As a % of Prior Year Sales
Wholesale DIY OEMs Total Wholesale DIY OEMs
(dollars in millions)
North America $ 244 $ 1¢ $ 31 % 29.4 5.5% 1.5% 6.C%
EMEA (4.9 (2.9) (11.9) (19.5) (2.9) (19.9 (6.0)
Asia 4.5 — — 4.5 23.C — —
Total $ 240 $ 0.9 $ 87 $ 144 3.5% (0.6)% (3.5%

Organic net sales in the North America wholesalekatancreased in the first nine months of 2013npared to the first nine months of 20
mainly from increased sales in residential and ceneial flow products and in HVAC product lines. ganic sales increased in the North
America DIY market in the first nine months of 20d@mpared to the first nine months of 2012 througit sales increases that were partially
offset by pricing degradation. Organic net satethe North America OEM market increased compaodtié first nine months of 2012 due
primarily to an increase in residential and comnaiftow product sales.

Organic net sales in the EMEA wholesale marketetesd in the first nine months of 2013 as compiar#ite same period in 2012 primarily
due to the economic market conditions in France@aanany, partially offset by continued growth ur @rains and export business. Orgi
net sales into the EMEA OEM market decreased agpaoed to the first nine months of 2012 primarilyda a slower HYAC market in
Germany and fewer large project sales in the diauiséness.

The net increase in sales due to foreign exchargepnimarily due to the appreciation of the euraiagt the U.S. dollar. We cannot predict
whether the euro will appreciate or depreciateradhe U.S. dollar in future periods or whethaufa foreign exchange rate fluctuations will
have a positive or negative impact on our net sales

Acquired net sales growth in North America was ttuthe inclusion of tekmar sales for an entire mmanths in the 2013 period.

Gross Profit.Gross profit and gross profit as a percent of aktss(gross margin) for the first nine months cf2@nd 2012 were as follows:

Nine Months Ended

September 29, 201 September 30, 201
(dollars in millions)
Gross profi $ 395.¢ $ 384.¢
Gross margir 36.(% 35.¢%

North Americi s gross margin increased slightly compared toiteerfine months of 2012 due primarily to improy@dductivity and produc
mix over the nine months offset by inefficiencietated to our lead free conversion program andrgripressures in the
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North America retail channel. EMFE's gross margin increased slightly due primarilyptoduction efficiencies and select price increases
offsetting lower overhead absorption related taioed volumes.

Selling, General and Administrative Expense3elling, general and administrative, or SG&A, exges for the first nine months of 2013
increased $8.1 million, or 2.8%, compared to th& fiine months of 2012. The increase in SG&A asps was attributable to the following:

(in millions) % Change
Organic $ 5.2 1.9%
Foreign exchang 2.2 0.8
Acquired 0.2 0.1
Total $ 8.1 2.8%

The organic increase in SG&A expenses was primdrily to increased personnel costs of $2.6 millimreased freight and commission ¢
of $3.0 million associated with increased salesiandeased product liability cost of $2.7 milliondalegal settlement costs of $1.6 million,
partially offset by decreased depreciation and &magion expense of $1.2 million costs, nonrecgimior year retention costs of $0.8 mill
related to our retired CFO, decreased bad debinerpef $0.5 million and advertising costs of $0ifiom. Increased product liability cost in
North America of $2.7 million is based on an updaetuarial analysis that incorporated a recenease in reported claims, in which 1
majority relates to legacy products. Increasedqgrers| costs primarily relate to investments in nesitions and increased stock incentive
plan costs. The increase in SG&A expenses fromdgorexchange was primarily due to the appreciatitihe euro against the U.S. dollar in
2013. Acquired SG&A expenses were related to thmée acquisition. Total SG&A expenses, as a paacgnof sales, were 26.8% in the
first nine months of 2013 and 26.6% in the firstenmonths of 2012.

Restructuring and Other Charges, N In the first nine months of 2013, we recorded techarge of $7.0 million primarily for involuntary
terminations and other costs incurred as part oEowope and North America restructuring plans;@sapared to $1.8 million of restructuring
and other charges for the first nine months of 208@r a more detailed description of our curr@stnucturing plans, see Note 5 of Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements.

Adjustment to Gain on Disposal of Busindn the first nine months of 2012, we incurred a%1illion charge related to an adjustment made
to the gain on disposal of TWVC.

Goodwill and Other Long-Lived Asset Impairment QJes. In the first nine months of 2013 we recorded asspairment charges of $0.2
million related to certain assets held for sale;@apared to asset impairment charges of $3.0amiflor the first nine months of 2012
primarily related to goodwill impairment at BRAE $1.0 million and $1.4 million of impairment chasgeslated to certain assets held for

Operating Income. Operating income (loss) by geographic segmernth#first nine months of 2013 and 2012 were devid:

% Change to
Consolidated

Nine Months Ended Operating
September 29, 201 September 30, 201. Change Income
(dollars in millions)
North America $ 79.C $ 71€ $ 7.4 8.(%
EMEA 34.2 40.C (5.6) (6.9
Asia 78 4.3 3.C 3.2
Corporate (26.7) (23.9) (2.9 (3.0
Total $ 944 $ 926 $ 1.€ 1.%

The increase (decrease) in operating income (Issgjributable to the following:

Change Change
As a % of Consolidated Operating Income As a % of Segment Operating Incom
North North North
America EMEA Asia Corp. Total America EMEA Asia Corp. Total America EMEA Asia Corp.
(dollars in millions)
Organic $ 56 $ (25 $ 12 $ (29 $ 15 55% (2.7)% 1.4%  (3.0% 1.6% 70%  (6.9% 30.%  12.%
Foreign exchang 0.3 1.1 0.1 — 0.¢ (0.3) 1.2 0.1 — 1.C (0.4) 2.8 2.3 —
Acquired 0.1 — — — 0.1 0.1 — — — 0.1 0.1 — — —
Restructuring, impairment charg
and othel 2.1 (4.4) 1.€ — (0.7 2.3 (4.€) 1.7 — (0.8) 2.8 (11.0 37.2 —
Total $ 74 $ 5989 $ 3C $ (29 $ 18 8.%  (6.9% 3.2%  (3.0% 1.9% 10.9%  (14.9% 69.6%  12.(%

The increase in consolidated operating income waspdimarily to an increase in gross profit fromreased sales volume offset by the
increase in SG&A and restructuring expenses asqusly discussed. The increase in North Americaganic operating income

24




Table of Contents

was driven by improved gross profit driven by highkales volume offset by inefficiencies relatedtw lead free conversion program and
pricing pressures in the North America retail chelnfThe EMEA operating income decrease was dieater gross profit from a sales
volume decline and higher restructuring costs,ialyrtoffset by SG&A expense reductions. Corporaists increased over the prior year due
to personnel costs of $3.0 million for investmantaew positions and higher stock incentive plastgo The acquired operating income was
related to the tekmar acquisition.

Interest Expenst Interest expense decreased $1.8 million, or 9f8#4he first nine months of 2013 as compared#ofirst nine months of
2012 due to the lower balance outstanding on @ndsby letters of credit and the retirement in midy 2013 of $75.0 million unsecured
senior notes.

Other expense (income), neOther expense (income), net increased $3.2 mifbo the first nine months of 2013 as comparethéofirst
nine months of 2012, primarily due to foreign cag transaction losses in Asia as a result of gpgexiation of the Chinese yuan against the
U.S. dollar in 2013. In addition, a favorable aums$ settlement recorded in 2012 did not repea®ir82

Income Taxes Our effective income tax rate for continuing agiems decreased to 31.1% in the first nine moatitked September 29, 2013,
from 31.5% for the first nine months ended SeptamBBe2012. The rate remained fairly steady whith teduction of the Danish tax rate in
2013 helping to keep the rate at a slightly lovhamt historic level.

Net Income Net income from continuing operations for thetfinine months of 2013 was $52.7 million, or $1p48 common share,
compared to $52.2 million, or $1.44 per common ehir the first nine months of 2012. Results fa first nine months of 2013 include an
after-tax charge of $5.1 million, or $0.14 per coomshare, for restructuring and other charges aodwill and other long-lived asset
impairment charges, compared to $4.8 million, ad$(er common share, for the first nine month&adf2. Further, the effects of the share
repurchase programs contributed $0.03 per commarre $h the first nine months of 2013.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

We generated $67.7 million of net cash from opega#ictivities in the first nine months of 2013 aspared to cash generation of $71.5
million in the first nine months of 2012. This dease is primarily due to the net change in workiagital driven by increased accounts
receivable due to increased sales volume and isedeiaventory relating to the incremental inventomyld for the lead free transition
program. During the nine month period ended Sepeerd®, 2013 we invested an incremental $28 mikibmventory in preparation of the
transition of our customers to lead free inventory.

We used $19.1 million of net cash for investing\ati¢s for the first nine months of 2013, for cegbiequipment, primarily related to our new
lead free foundry. For the last quarter of fisgzdr 2013, we expect to invest approximately $1llianiin capital equipment as part of our
ongoing commitment to improve our operating cads.

We used $102.3 million of net cash for financingwites for the first nine months of 2013 primarfor the repayment of the $75.0 million of
unsecured senior notes that matured on May 15,,2@8nents to repurchase approximately 402,00@slarClass A common stock at a
cost of approximately $20.0 million and paymentididends of $13.1 million, offset by proceeds 8f4million from option exercises under
the employee stock plans.

Our credit agreement (the Credit Agreement) pravide a multi-currency $300.0 million, five-yeaersor unsecured revolving credit facility
which may be increased by an additional $150.0anilunder certain circumstances and subject toettmes of the Credit Agreement. The
Credit Agreement has a sublimit of up to $75.0ionillin letters of credit. The Credit Agreement nmmatuon June 18, 2015.

Borrowings outstanding under the Credit Agreemeatriinterest at a fluctuating rate per annum egu@) in the case of Eurocurrency rate
loans, the British Bankers’ Association LIBOR ratas an applicable percentage, ranging from 1.702:30%, determined by reference to
our consolidated leverage ratio plus, in the cdseidain lenders, a mandatory cost calculatedaoriance with the terms of the Credit
Agreement, or (ii) in the case of base rate loantssaving line loans, the highest of (a) the fed&radls rate plus 0.5%, (b) the rate of interest
in effect for such day as announced by Bank of AcagiN.A. as its “prime rate,” and (c) the BritiBlankers’ Association LIBOR rate plus
1.0%, plus an applicable percentage, ranging frofd% to 1.30%, determined by reference to our dateted leverage ratio. In addition to
paying interest under the Credit Agreement, weatge required to pay certain fees in connectioh wie credit facility, including, but not
limited to, a facility fee and letter of credit fedJnder the Credit Agreement, we are require@tisfy and maintain specified financial ratios
and other financial condition tests. We may reman outstanding under the Credit Agreement frome to time without premium or pena
other than customary breakage costs, if any, abgstto the terms of the Credit Agreement. ASeptember 29, 2013, we had $29.6 mil
of stand-by letters of credit outstanding under@hnedit Agreement. As of September 29, 2013, weevwrecompliance with all covenants
related to the Credit Agreement and had $270.4anibbf unused and available credit under the Crédieement.

Working capital (defined as current assets lesgeatitiabilities) as of September 29, 2013 was $60allion compared to $454.9 million as
of December 31, 2012. Cash and cash equivalenteaked to $227.2 million as of September 29, 26d@pared to $271.3 million as of
December 31, 2012. The decrease in cash and caslalents was driven primarily by the repaymentlebt, repurchase of stock and an
increase in inventory and capital spending relédenlir lead free transition program, offset palgtily

25




Table of Contents

cash generated from operations. The ratio of ctiaesets to current liabilities was 2.6 to 1 aSeptember 29, 2013 and 2.2 to 1 as of
December 31, 2012.

As of September 29, 2013, we held $227.2 millionash and cash equivalents. Of this amount, appetgly $196.6 million of cash and
cash equivalents was held by foreign subsidiar@st ability to fund operations from this balancild be limited by possible tax
implications of moving proceeds across jurisdicsio®ur U.S. operations currently generate sufitctash flows to meet our domestic
obligations. We also have the ability to borrowds at reasonable interest rates or utilize thengitted funds under our Credit Agreement.
However, if amounts held by foreign subsidiariesevaeeded to fund operations in the United States;ould be required to accrue and pay
taxes to repatriate these funds. Such chargesnmolgle a federal tax of up to 35.0% on dividergtseived in the U.S., potential state income
taxes and an additional withholding tax payabléoteign jurisdictions of up to 10.0%. However, dntent is to permanently reinvest
undistributed earnings of foreign subsidiaries aeddo not have any current plans to repatriate tteefund operations in the United States.

Nor-GAAP Financial Measures

We believe free cash flow to be an appropriate lempental measure of our operating performance tseciprovides investors with a
measure of our ability to generate cash, repay, galytdividends, repurchase stock and fund acéuisit Other companies may define free
cash flow differently. Free cash flow does not essg@nt cash generated from operating activitieséoraance with GAAP. Therefore it shoi
not be considered an alternative to net cash peoMiy operations as an indication of our performeaiitie cash conversion rate of free cash
flow to net income is also a measure of our pertoree in cash flow generation.

A reconciliation of net cash provided by operataugivities to free cash flow and calculation of eash conversion rate is provided below:

Nine Months Ended

September 29 September 30
2013 2012
(in millions)

Net cash provided by operating activit $ 67.7 $ 71.t
Less: additions to property, plant, and equipn (22.6) (18.6)

Plus: proceeds from the sale of property, plard, egquipmen 1.4 0.¢
Free cash flow $ 46.5 $ 53.¢
Net income from continuing operatio $ 527 $ 52.2
Cash conversion rate of free cash flow to net ineémm continuing

operations 88.2% 103.1%

Our free cash flow decreased in the first nine mewatf 2013 when compared to the first nine monft&0&2 primarily due to cash investment
in working capital and additional capital spendipgmarily related to the lead free transition pamg.

Our net debt to capitalization ratio (a non-GAARaficial measure) at September 29, 2013 was 7.6%pared to 10.8% at December 31,
2012. The decrease in net debt to capitalizatito imdue to a reduction in net debt and incrermlemét income recorded during the period.
Management believes the net debt to capitalizatitio is an appropriate supplemental measure bedahslps investors understand our
ability to meet our financing needs and serveslaasss to evaluate our financial structure. Our potation may not be comparable to other
companies that may define their net debt to capitbn ratios differently.

A reconciliation of long-term debt (including cuntgportion) to net debt and our net debt to caig##ibn ratio is provided below:

September 29 December 31
2013 2012
(in millions)
Current portion of lon-term deb $ 21 % 77.1
Plus: lon¢-term debt, net of current portic 306.- 307.t
Less: cash and cash equivalents (227.7) (271.9)
Net debt $ 811 $ 1138
September 29 December 31
2013 2012
(in millions)

Net debi $ 811 $ 113.8
Plus: total stockholders’ equity 985.¢ 939.f
Capitalization $ 1,067.C $ 1,052.¢
Net debt to capitalization rat 7.6% 10.8%
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We maintain letters of credit that guarantee oufgpmance or payment to third parties in accordamitle specified terms and conditions.
Amounts outstanding were approximately $29.6 millis of September 29, 2013 and $34.8 million aebder 31, 2012. Our letters of
credit are primarily associated with insurance cage and, to a lesser extent, foreign purchasegemerally expire within one year of
issuance. These instruments may exist or expiteowttbeing drawn down; therefore they do not nerédggepresent future cash flow
obligations.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

Except for operating lease commitments, we haveffibalance sheet arrangements that have or asemahly likely to have a current or
future effect on our financial condition, changedinancial condition, revenues or expenses, regiloperations, liquidity, capital
expenditures or capital resources that are materiavestors.

Application of Critical Accounting Policies and Key Estimates

The preparation of our consolidated financial stegets in accordance with U.S. GAAP requires managémno make judgments, assumpti
and estimates that affect the amounts reporteditidat accounting estimate is an assumption abally uncertain matters and could have a
material effect on the consolidated financial staats if another, also reasonable, amount were osea change in the estimate is reasor
likely from period to period. We base our assumpion historical experience and on other estinthsgtswve believe are reasonable under the
circumstances. Actual results could differ sigrafily from these estimates. There were no chaimgascounting policies or significant
changes in accounting estimates during the first months of 2013.

We periodically discuss the development, selectiodh disclosure of the estimates with our Audit Catrea. Management believes the
following critical accounting policies reflect itsore significant estimates and assumptions.

Revenue recognitic

We recognize revenue when all of the followingemia are met: (1) we have entered into a bindirrgemgent, (2) the product has shipped and
titte has passed, (3) the sales price to the cust@fixed or is determinable and (4) collectaypils reasonably assured. We recognize rev
based upon a determination that all criteria feergie recognition have been met, which, basede@m#gjority of our shipping terms, is
considered to have occurred upon shipment of thishfed product. Some shipping terms require thelgtm be received by the customer
before title passes. In those instances, revemeasod recognized until the customer has receiiedybods. We record estimated reductior
revenue for customer returns and allowances andufstomer programs. Provisions for returns andwalfeces are made at the time of sale,
derived from historical trends and form a portidrih@ allowance for doubtful accounts. Customegpams, which are primarily annual
volume incentive plans, allow customers to earuitfer attaining agreed upon purchase targets fusmNe record estimated reductions to
revenue, made at the time of sale, for customegrpros based on estimated purchase targets.

Allowance for doubtful accoun

The allowance for doubtful accounts is establisioegpresent our best estimate of the net reabzadlue of the outstanding accounts
receivable. The development of our allowance farltful accounts varies by region but in generdlaised on a review of past due amounts,
historical write-off experience, as well as agirents affecting specific accounts and general dpewdl factors affecting all accounts. In
addition, factors are developed in certain regigatiizing historical trends of sales and returnd allowances and cash discount activities to
derive a reserve for returns and allowances and diasounts.

We uniformly consider current economic trends amahges in customer payment terms when evaluatsngdbquacy of the allowance for
doubtful accounts. We also aggressively monitorctieelitworthiness of our largest customers, anégially review customer credit limits
to reduce risk. If circumstances relating to specifistomers change or unanticipated changes attie general business environment, our
estimates of the recoverability of receivables ddié further adjusted.

Inventory valuatior

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or mtankth costs determined primarily on a first-irsfiout basis. We utilize both specific prod
identification and historical product demand ashihsis for determining our excess or obsolete itorgmeserve. We identify all inventories
that exceed a range of one to four years in sétgs.is determined by comparing the current invenbalance against unit sales for the
trailing twelve months. New products added to irteenwithin the past twelve months are excludedrfithis analysis. A portion of our
products contain recoverable materials, therefoeeeikcess and obsolete reserve is established aey oecoverable amounts. Changes in
market conditions, lower-than-expected customerate@mchanges in regulation such as the lead tofteadequirements in the U.S., or
changes in technology or features could resultlitaonal obsolete inventory that is not salealmd eould require additional inventory
reserve provisions.
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In certain countries, additional inventory reseraes maintained for potential shrinkage experienndtle manufacturing process. The rest
is established based on the prior year’s inventmsyes adjusted for any change in the gross iniebtdance.

Goodwill and other intangibles

We have made numerous acquisitions over the ydaichvncluded the recognition of a significant ambaf goodwill. Goodwill is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently if an eventircumstance indicates that an impairment loag have been incurred. Application of
the goodwill impairment test requires judgmentjuding the identification of reporting units, assigent of assets and liabilities to reporting
units, and determination of the fair value of eegborting unit. We estimate the fair value of agparting units using an income approach
based on the present value of estimated futureftash. We believe this approach yields the mogtrapriate evidence of fair value as our
reporting units are not easily compared to othepa@tions involved in similar businesses. We hd@ermined we have eight reporting units
including Residential and Commercial, Dormont, Dsa& Water Re-use, BRAE, Water Quality, EMEA, Bléchand Asia. Our Water
Quality reporting unit does not have goodwill.

We review goodwill for impairment as of month endt@ber utilizing either qualitative or quantitatisealyses. We have the option to first
assess qualitative factors to determine whetheexistence of events or circumstances leads téesrdimation that it is more likely than not
that the fair value of a reporting unit is lessrtlits carrying amount. [f, after assessing thaliigtof events and circumstances, we determine
it is more likely than not that the fair value ofeporting unit is greater than its carrying ametimtn performing the two-step (quantitative)
impairment test is unnecessary.

We first identify those reporting units that weibeé could pass a qualitative assessment to deterwiiether further impairment testing is
necessary. For each reporting unit identified,qualitative analysis includes:

1) A review of the most recent fair value calculattoridentify the extent of the cushion between Yailue and carrying
amount, to determine if a substantial cushion egist

2) Areview of events and circumstances that haveroedisince the most recent fair value calculat@mddtermine if those
events or circumstances would have affected owiquis fair value assessment. Items identified r@vibwed include
macroeconomic conditions, industry and market ceangost factor changes, events that affect thartieg unit, financial
performance against expectations and the repautiitts performance relative to peers.

We then compile this information and make our assesit of whether it is more likely than not that fair value of the reporting unit is less
than its carrying amount. If we determine it is mmre likely than not, then no further quantitatanalysis is required.

The second analysis for goodwill impairment invaleequantitative two-step process. The first sfehe impairment test requires a
comparison of the fair value of each of our repaytiinits to the respective carrying value. If taerging value of a reporting unit is less than
its fair value, no indication of impairment existsd a second step is not performed. If the carrgimgunt of a reporting unit is higher than its
fair value, there is an indication that impairmeraty exist and a second step must be performetieladcond step, the impairment is
computed by comparing the implied fair value of tporting units goodwill with the carrying amount of the goodwifithe carrying amoui

of the reporting unit's goodwill is greater thar implied fair value of its goodwill, an impairmdoss must be recognized for the excess and
charged to operations.

Inherent in our development of the present valuiitnire cash flow projections are assumptions atichates derived from a review of our
operating results, business plans, expected gnateis, cost of capital and tax rates. We also makain assumptions about future economic
conditions and other market data. We develop ssuraptions based on our historical results inclydeles growth, operating profits,
working capital levels and tax rates.

We believe that the discounted cash flow modetisiive to the selected discount rate. We usd-fharty valuation specialists to help
develop appropriate discount rates for each remprtnit. We use standard valuation practicesriweaat a weighted average cost of capital
based on the market and guideline public companiée higher the discount rate, the lower the disted cash flows. While we believe that
our estimates of future cash flows are reasondifferent assumptions could significantly affect @aluations and result in impairments in
the future.

As of October 28, 2012, the annual impairment asiglglate, the fair value of the EMEA reporting umiteeded the carrying value by a
significant amount. During the six months endewkeJB0, 2013, operating results for the EMEA repgrtinit had been hindered by the
downturn in the economic environment in Europe eomtinued to fall below the expected operating ltssand growth rates used in the
calculation of the present value of future casWwffojections, triggering the decision to update ithpairment analysis. As a result of the
updated fair value assessment, it was determiregdtb fair value of the EMEA reporting unit didcdease from year end but continues to
exceed its carrying value by approximately 15%. aée performed an analysis on the Idivgd assets in the EMEA reporting unit as a re
of the triggering event and concluded that thesetasvere not impaired.

Based on the operating results for the three maerided September 29, 2013 and the expected sdwimgshe European operations
restructuring program approved by the Board on 301y2013, it was determined that the fair valuthefEMEA reporting unit continues to
exceed its carrying value.
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Should the EMEA reporting unit’s operating resaléxline further for any reason, including if ther&qpean marketplace deteriorates beyond
our current expectations or should interest rateease significantly, then the reporting unit ®dwill may be at risk for impairment in the
future. The EMEA reporting unit's goodwill balanas of September 29, 2013 was $218.2 million.

Product liability and worker compensation costs

Because of retention requirements associated witlingsurance policies, we are generally se$iared for potential product liability claims &
for workers’ compensation costs associated withkplaice accidents. We are subject to a variety téig@l liabilities in connection with
product liability cases and we maintain produdiilisy and other insurance coverage, which we lyeli® be generally in accordance with
industry practices. For product liability caseshie U.S., management establishes its productitiabtcrual, which includes legal costs
associated with accrued claims, by utilizing thpaity actuarial valuations that incorporate hist@irtrend factors and our specific claims
experience derived from loss reports provided lingtharty administrators. In other countries, we maimtnsurance coverage with relativi
high deductible payments, as product liability wiaitend to be smaller than those experienced iliBe Changes in the nature of claims or
the actual settlement amounts could affect the @aggof this estimate and require changes to theigions. Because the liability is an
estimate, the ultimate liability may be more oisl#fsan reported.

Workers’ compensation liabilities in the U.S. ageagnized for claims incurred (including claimsumed but not reported), legal costs
associated with accrued claims, and for chang#seistatus of individual case reserves. At the timerkers’ compensation claim is filed, a
liability is estimated to settle the claim. Thebllgty for workers’ compensation claims is determinbased on management’s estimates of the
nature and severity of the claims and based orysisgirovided by third-party administrators andviayious state statutes and reserve
requirements. We have developed our own trend fauttased on our specific claims experience, diseoubased on risk-free interest rates.
We employ third-party actuarial valuations to hetpestimate our workers’ compensation accruabthier countries where workers’
compensation costs are applicable, we maintairramse coverage with limited deductible paymentsaBse the liability is an estimate, the
ultimate liability may be more or less than repdréad is subject to changes in discount rates.

We determine the trend factors for product liapitind workers’ compensation liabilities based onstdtation with outside actuaries.

We maintain excess liability insurance with outsigurance carriers to minimize our risks relateddtastrophic claims in excess of all self-
insured positions. Any material change in the af@etioned factors could have an adverse impactiooerating results.

Legal contingencie

We are a defendant in numerous legal matters inguthose involving environmental law and produability as discussed in more detail in
Part I, Item 1, “Business - Product Liability, Emmmental and Other Litigation Matters,” of our Arah Report on Form 10-K for the year
ended December 31, 2012. As required by GAAP, eterchine whether an estimated loss from a lossragericy should be accrued by
assessing whether a loss is deemed probable atastheamount can be reasonably estimated, netycdgplicable insurance proceeds. When
it is possible to estimate reasonably possible dosange of loss above the amount accrued, thiatas is aggregated and disclosed.
Estimates of potential outcomes of these continigsrare developed in consultation with outside seur\While this assessment is based t
all available information, litigation is inherentlyncertain and the actual liability to fully reselthis litigation cannot be predicted with any
assurance of accuracy. In the event of an unfale@@iicome in one or more legal matters, the ulnfiability may be in excess of amounts
currently accrued, if any, and may be materialuoaperating results or cash flows for a particajaarterly or annual period.

Pension benefit

We account for our pension plans in accordance @AAP, which involves recording a liability or aséased on the projected benefit
obligation and the fair value of plan assets. Agstions are made regarding the valuation of beoéligations and the performance of plan
assets. The primary assumptions are as follows:

* Weighted average discount ratéis rate is used to estimate the current valdatafe benefits. This rate is adjusted based onamant it
long-term interest rates.

» Expected long-term rate of return on assets—thésisaused to estimate future growth in investmantsinvestment earnings. The
expected return is based upon a combination abfiiistt market performance and anticipated fututerres for a portfolio reflecting the mix
equity, debt and other investments indicative afan assets.

We determine these assumptions based on consnoltaitio outside actuaries and investment advisony. variance in these assumptions
could have a significant impact on future recogdipension costs, assets and liabilities. On Oct8bg2011, our Board of Directors votec
cease accruals of additional benefits effectivedbamer 31, 2011 under both the Pension Plan and&upptal Employees Retirement Plan.

29




Table of Contents
Income taxe

We estimate and use our expected annual effecto@rie tax rates to accrue income taxes. Effectivedtes are determined based on
budgeted earnings before taxes, including our é&gnate of permanent items that will affect theafve rate for the year. Management
periodically reviews these rates with outside tdxisors and changes are made if material variainogsexpectations are identified.

We recognize deferred taxes for the expected fudonsequences of events that have been reflected itonsolidated financial statements.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are determbeeskd on differences between the book values arzhtges of particular assets and liabilities,
using tax rates in effect for the years in which differences are expected to reverse. A valuatilonvance is provided to offset any net
deferred tax assets if, based upon the availalteree, it is more likely than not that some oroélthe deferred tax assets will not be reali
We consider estimated future taxable income andioggorudent tax planning strategies in assessiagnéed for a valuation allowance.

New Accounting Standar:

In July 2013, the FASB issued ASU 2013-11, “Prestion of an Unrecognized Tax Benefit When a Netr@fieg Loss Carryforward, a
Similar Tax Loss, or a Tax Credit Carryforward Egiswhich is intended to eliminate the diversitygractice in the presentation of
unrecognized tax benefits in those instances. 2818-11 is effective for fiscal years, and intepariods beginning after December 15,
2013. The adoption of this guidance is not expetddthve a material impact on the Company'’s finanstatements.

In March 2013, the FASB issued Accounting Standahpdate (ASU) No. 2013-05, “Parent’s Accounting ttee Cumulative Translation
Adjustment upon Derecognition of Certain Subsi@isudr Groups of Assets within a Foreign Entity foam Investment in a Foreign Entity.”
This ASU is intended to eliminate diversity in piae on the release of cumulative translation adjest into net income when a parent either
sells a part or all of its investment in a foreggutity or no longer holds a controlling financiatérest. In addition, the amendments in this .
resolve the diversity in practice for the treatmefbusiness combinations achieved in stages (soragialso referred to as step acquisitions)
involving a foreign entity. The provisions of tlASU are effective for interim and annual periodgibring after December 15, 2013, with
early adoption permitted, and must be applied mospely. We early adopted the ASU in fiscal ye@t 2.

In February 2013, the FASB issued ASU 2013-02, ‘tReypg of Amounts Reclassified Out of Accumulateth€ Comprehensive Income”,
which requires additional disclosures about amoratkassified out of OCI by component, either omfilice of the income statement or as a
separate footnote to the financial statements. R818B-02 is effective for fiscal years, and integariods within those years, beginning after
December 15, 2012. The adoption of this guidansenbd had a material impact on our financial statets

Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures bout Market Risk

We use derivative financial instruments primardyréduce exposure to adverse fluctuations in foreichange rates, interest rates and costs
of certain raw materials used in the manufactupragess. We do not enter into derivative finanicistruments for trading purposes. As a
matter of policy, all derivative positions are usededuce risk by hedging underlying economic expe. The derivatives we use are
instruments with liquid markets.

Our consolidated earnings, which are reported itddrStates dollars, are subject to translatidksrdue to changes in foreign currency
exchange rates. This risk is concentrated primarithe exchange rate between the U.S. dollar eetiro; the U.S. dollar and the Canadian
dollar; and the U.S. dollar and the Chinese yuan.
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Our non-U.S. subsidiaries transact most businashjding certain intercompany transactions, inifpreurrencies. Such transactions are
principally purchases or sales of materials anddarmminated in European currencies or the U.Eamadian dollar. We use foreign curre
forward exchange contracts to manage the riskaglat intercompany purchases that occur duringadlese of a year and certain open
foreign currency denominated commitments to seltipcts to third parties. Realized and unrealizsdgand losses on the contracts we
recognized in other (income) expense are not naédteri

We have historically had a low exposure on the obsur debt to changes in interest rates. Infoionadbout our long-term debt, including
principal amounts and related interest rates, agpeaNotes 4 and 9 of this report and in Note fiates to Consolidated Financial
Statements in our Annual Report on Form 10-K ferybar ended December 31, 2012.

We purchase significant amounts of bronze inga@sérod, cast iron, steel and plastic, which dlieed in manufacturing our many product
lines. Our operating results can be adversely tteby changes in commodity prices if we are untbfeass on related price increases to our
customers. We manage this risk by monitoring rdlabarket prices, working with our suppliers to @efei the maximum level of stability in
their costs and related pricing, seeking altereasivpply sources when necessary, purchasing forveandnitments for raw materials, when
available, implementing cost reduction program&je@ngineering, and passing increases in costsaumtcustomers in the form of price
increases.

Item 4. Controls and Procedures

As required by Rule 13a-15(b) under the Securliieshange Act of 1934, as amended, or Exchangea&atf the end of the period covered
by this report, we carried out an evaluation uritlersupervision and with the participation of owrmagement, including our Chief Executive
Officer and Chief Financial Officer (our principakecutive officer and principal financial officeespectively), of the effectiveness of our
disclosure controls and procedures. In designimbevaluating our disclosure controls and procesjuwe recognize that any controls and
procedures, no matter how well designed and opraée provide only reasonable assurance of aciyeiie desired control objectives, and
our management necessarily applies its judgmesnatuating and implementing possible controls amdgdures. The effectiveness of our
disclosure controls and procedures is also nedbshienited by the staff and other resources avadao us and the geographic diversity of
operations. Based upon that evaluation, our Chiethtive Officer and Chief Financial Officer condtd that, as of the end of the period
covered by this report, our disclosure controls prtedures were effective, in that they providesomable assurance that information
required to be disclosed by us in the reports \eeofi submit under the Exchange Act is recorded¢c@ssed, summarized and reported within
the time periods specified in the Securities andiarge Commissios’rules and forms and are designed to ensurentfoairiation required |
be disclosed by us in the reports that we fileutmsit under the Exchange Act are accumulated amihamicated to our management,
including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Bircial Officer, as appropriate to allow timely d&ens regarding required disclosure.

There was no change in our internal control ovgairfcial reporting that occurred during the quastaded September 29, 2013, that has
materially affected, or is reasonably likely to evélly affect, our internal control over financigporting. In connection with these rules, we
will continue to review and document our discloscoatrols and procedures, including our internaitcad over financial reporting, and may
from time to time make changes aimed at enhantieig ¢ffectiveness and to ensure that our systewlsewith our business.
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Part 1. OTHER INFORMATION

ltem|. Legal Proceedings

As disclosed in Part I, Item 1, “Product Liabiliggnvironmental and Other Litigation Matters” of cdimnual Report on Form 10-K for the
year ended December 31, 2012, we are party toicdittgation. There have been no material devalepts with respect to our contingenc
and environmental remediation proceedings duriegyinarter ended September 29, 2013.

Item 1A. Risk Factors

This report may include statements that are nabtical facts and are considered forward-lookinthi the meaning of the Private Securities
Litigation Reform Act of 1995. These forward-longistatements reflect our current views about &utesults of operations and other
forward-looking information. In some cases you whntify these statements by forward-looking wogdsh as “anticipate,” “believe,”
“could,” “estimate,” “expect,” “intend,” “may,” “sbuld” and “would” or similar words. You should naly on forward-looking statements
because our actual results may differ materiatiynfthose indicated by these forward-looking statemas a result of a number of important
factors. These factors include, but are not lichtte the following: the current economic and finil condition, which can affect levels of
housing starts and remodeling, affecting the markétere our products are sold, manufactured, okaeted; difficulties in converting lead
free products; shortages in and pricing of raw mi@teand supplies; loss of market share throughpaiition; introduction of competing
products by other companies; pressure on prices é@mpetitors, suppliers, and/or customers; chaimgeariable interest rates on our
borrowings; identification and disclosure of maakweaknesses in our internal control over findngporting; failure to expand our markets
through acquisitions; failure or delay in develapmew products; lack of acceptance of new proddigiisire to manufacture products that
meet required performance and safety standardsigfoexchange rate fluctuations; cyclicality ofustties, such as plumbing and heating
wholesalers and home improvement retailers, in wiie market certain of our products; environmeotahpliance costs; product liability
costs; the results and timing of our restructuptans; changes in the status of current litigataong other risks and uncertainties discussed in
Part I, “Item 1A. Risk Factors” and in Note 14 b&tNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statemendsii Annual Report on Form 10-K for
the year ended December 31, 2012 filed with thesStges Exchange Commission, and in other repogdil® from time to time with the
Securities and Exchange Commission.
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Item 2. Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities ahUse of Proceeds

We satisfy the minimum withholding tax obligationedupon the vesting of shares of restricted stackthe conversion of restricted stock
units into shares of Class A common stock by autmaldy withholding from the shares being issuedumber of shares with an aggregate
market value on the date of such vesting or comwerfat would satisfy the withholding amount due.

The following table includes information with regpéo shares of our Class A common stock withhelstisfy withholding tax obligations
during the three-month period ended September@£B.2

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securitie

(c) Total Number (d) Maximum Number (or

(a) Total (b) of Shares (or Approximate Dollar

Number of Average Units) Purchased Value) of Shares (or

Shares (or Price Paid as Part of Publicly Units) that May Yet Be

Units) per Share Announced Plans Purchased Under the Plans

Period Purchased (or Unit) or Programs or Programs
July 1, 201:— July 28, 201: 31 % 50.9¢ — —
July 29, 201:— August 25, 201: 27,11: $ 54.2¢ — —
August 26, 2013 — September 29, 2013 — $ — — —
Total 27,140 $ 54.2¢ — —

The following table includes information with regpéo repurchases of our Class A common stock duhie three-month period ended
September 29, 2013 under our stock repurchasegmogr

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securitie

(c) Total Number (d) Maximum Number (or
(a) Total (b) of Shares (or Approximate Dollar
Number of Average Units) Purchased Value) of Shares (or
Shares (or Price Paid as Part of Publicly Units) that May Yet Be
Units) per Share Announced Plans Purchased Under the Plans

Period Purchased (1) (or Unit) or Programs or Programs
July 1, 201%— July 28, 201: 62,86: $ 50.3¢ 62,86: $ 76,840,66
July 29, 201:— August 25, 201. 63,20C $ 53.5¢ 63,20C $ 73,453,68
August 26, 2013 — September 29, 2013 63,05! $ 54.6: 63,05 $ 70,010,14
Total 189,11+ $ 52.8¢ 189,11+ $ 70,010,14

(1) On April 30, 2013, the Board of Directors authed a stock repurchase program of up to $90 eniléf the Company’s Class A common
stock to be purchased from time to time on the aparket or in privately negotiated transactionse Timing and number of any shares
repurchased will be determined by the Company’sagament based on its evaluation of market conditiduring the quarter ended
September 29, 2013, we repurchased approximat@ $iillion of common stock.

Iltem 6. Exhibits

The exhibits listed in the Exhibit Index immedigtpreceding the exhibits are filed as part of Qisarterly Report on Form 10-Q and such
Exhibit Index is incorporated herein by reference.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caussddiport to be signed on its behalf by
undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

WATTS WATER TECHNOLOGIES, INC

Date: November 6, 201 By: /s/ David J. Coghla

David J. Coghlat
Chief Executive Officer (principal executive offige

Date: November 6, 201 By: /s/ Dean P. Freems

Dean P. Freeme
Chief Financial Officer (principal financial office

Date: November 6, 201 By: /s/ Kenneth S. Korotki
Kenneth S. Korotkit
Chief Accounting Officer (principal accounting afér)
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Listed and indexed below are all Exhibits filedoast of this report.

Exhibit No. Description

3.1 Restated Certificate of Incorporation, as amendg
3.2 Amended and Restated -Laws (2)

10.1 Form of Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement untter Watts Water Technologies, Inc. Second Amended=estated
2004 Stock Incentive Plan (

10.z Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement undenttats Water Technologies, Inc. Second Amended awdaRed 2004
Stock Incentive Plan (3

10.2  Form of Deferred Stock Award Agreement under thet§\W/ater Technologies, Inc. Second Amended antaRes2004
Stock Incentive Plan (:

10.4 Watts Water Technologies, Inc Management StockHase Plan Amended and Restated as of July 30,(3)
10.E  Form of Indemnification Agreement between Watts &/dtechnologies, Inc. and certain directors anatexf§

10.6 Compromise Agreement among Watts UK Limited, Whitkistries Europe B.V., Watts Water Technologias, &and John
Dennis Cawte (3

31.1 Certification of Principal Executive Officer pursuao Rule 13a-14(a) or Rule 15d-14(a) of the SéiesrExchange Act of
1934, as amende

31.z Certification of Principal Financial Officer purquaRule 13a-14(a) or Rule 15d-14(a) of the Se@sgikxchange Act of
1934, as amende

32.1 Certification of Principal Executive Officer pursudo 18 U.S.C. 135
32.2 Certification of Principal Financial Officer pursuao 18 U.S.C. 135
101.INS* XBRL Instance Documen
101.SCH* XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Docume
101.CAL* XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Docuin
101.DEF XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Docurnh
101.LAB* XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Docum

101.PRE’ XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Doenit

* Attached as Exhibit 101 to this report are thedielhg formatted in XBRL (Extensible Business Repar_anguage):
(i) Consolidated Balance Sheets at September 28 @0d December 31, 2012, (ii) Consolidated Statésnef Operations for the
Third Quarters Ended September 29, 2013 and Septedfh 2012 and the Nine Months Ended Septembe&t®® and
September 30, 2012, (iii) Consolidated Statemeh@omprehensive Income for the Third Quarters Er8leptember 29, 2013 and
September 30, 2012 and the Nine Months Ended Sépte2®, 2013 and September 30, 2012, (iv) CondelidGtatements of Cash
Flows for the Nine Months Ended September 29, 20iBSeptember 30, 2012, and (v) Notes to Conselidainancial Statements.

(1) Incorporated by reference to the Registrant’s @uigrReport on Form 10-Q (File No. 001-11499) toe fuarter ended July 3,
2005.

(2) Incorporated by reference to the Registrant’s GuriReport on Form 8-K (File No. 001-11499) datedilA20, 2013.

(3) Incorporated by reference to the Registrant’s @uisgrReport on Form 10-Q (File No. 001-11499) foe fjuarter ended June 30,
2013.
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Exhibit 10.5

INDEMNIFICATION AGREEMENT

This Agreement made and entered into this y ofla , (the “Agreementby and between Watts Water
Technologies, Inc., a Delaware corporation (thertpany,” which term shall include, where appropriatey Entity (as hereinafter defined)
controlled directly or indirectly by the Companyjca (the “Indemnitee”):

WHEREAS, it is essential to the Company that iabk to retain and attract as directors and ofiitlee most capable persons
available;

WHEREAS, increased corporate litigation has subjpclirectors and officers to litigation risks anghenses, and the limitations on
the availability of directors and officers liabjlitnsurance have made it increasingly difficult floe Company to attract and retain such
persons;

WHEREAS, the Company'’s Certificate of Incorporatam By-laws (the “Certificate of Incorporation”cifBy-laws,” respectively)
require it to indemnify its directors and officecsthe fullest extent permitted by law and perinibimake other indemnification arrangements
and agreements;

WHEREAS, the Company desires to provide Indemnititle specific contractual assurance of Indemnitegsts to full
indemnification against litigation risks and expem¢regardless, among other things, of any amenidimen revocation of the Certificate of
Incorporation or By-laws or any change in the owhgr of the Company or the composition of its Boafr®irectors);

WHEREAS, the Company intends that this Agreemeovige Indemnitee with greater protection than thhich is provided by the
Company’s Certificate of Incorporation and By-lawasd

WHEREAS, Indemnitee is relying upon the rights edfd under this Agreement in continuing as a direat officer of the
Company.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the promises tiie covenants contained herein, the Companyradetinitee do hereby
covenant and agree as follows:

1. Definitions.

€) “Corporate Status” describes the status of a perdmnis serving or has served (i) as a directafficer of the
Company, (ii) in any capacity with respect to anypéoyee benefit plan of the Company, or (iii) adirector, partner,
trustee, officer, employee, or agent of any othaiti at the request of the Company. For purpa$esibsection (iii) of this
Section 1(a), if Indemnitee is serving or has sga®a director, partner, trustee, officer, empogeagent of a




Subsidiary, Indemnitee shall be deemed to be sg@afithe request of the Company.

(b) “Entity” shall mean any corporation, partnershipmited liability company, joint venture, trust, fodation,
association, organization or other legal entity.

(c) “Expenses” shall mean all fees, costs and expénsased by Indemnitee in connection with any Pesling (as
defined below), including, without limitation, atteeys’ fees, disbursements and retainers (inclydistiout limitation, any
such fees, disbursements and retainers incurrdaddamnitee pursuant to Sections 10 and 11(c) efAlgreement), fees and
disbursements of expert witnesses, private invaistig and professional advisors (including, withauttation, accountants
and investment bankers), court costs, transcrigtiscéees of experts, travel expenses, duplicagingting and binding cost
telephone and fax transmission charges, postatieedeservices, secretarial services, and othelhutisements and
expenses.

(d) “Indemnifiable Expenses,” “Indemnifiable Liabilisg and “Indemnifiable Amounts” shall have the meys
ascribed to those terms in Section 3(a) below.

(e) “Liabilities” shall mean judgments, damages, lidigt, losses, penalties, excise taxes, fines arglats paid in
settlement.
® “Proceeding” shall mean any threatened, pendirmporpleted claim, action, suit, arbitration, alteendispute

resolution process, investigation, administratiearing, appeal, or any other proceeding, whethdr criminal,
administrative, arbitrative or investigative, whettiormal or informal, including a proceeding iateéd by Indemnitee
pursuant to Section 10 of this Agreement to enfémdemnitee’s rights hereunder.

(9) “Subsidiary” shall mean any corporation, partngsshimited liability company, joint venture, trust other Entity
of which the Company owns (either directly or thghwor together with another Subsidiary of the Conypaither (i) a
general partner, managing member or other simitareést or (ii) (A) 50% or more of the voting povedithe voting capital
equity interests of such corporation, partnersimmted liability company, joint venture or othenfity, or (B) 50% or more
of the outstanding voting capital stock or otheting equity interests of such corporation, parthgrslimited liability
company, joint venture or other Entity.




2. Services of Indemnitee In consideration of the Company’s covenants@mmitments hereunder, Indemnitee agrees to
serve or continue to serve as a director and/acesfbf the Company. However, this Agreement shailimpose any obligation on
Indemnitee or the Company to continue Indemniteetsice to the Company beyond any period otherveigaired by law or by other
agreements or commitments of the parties, if any.

3. Adreement to Indemnify The Company agrees to indemnify Indemnitee bowes:

(a) Proceedings Other Than By or In the Right of thenBany. Subject to the exceptions contained in Section 4
(a) below, if Indemnitee was or is a party or ietiened to be made a party to any Proceedingr (bt an action by or in
the right of the Company) by reason of Indemnit&sporate Status, Indemnitee shall be indemnbigthe Company
against all Expenses and Liabilities incurred ad ey Indemnitee in connection with such Proceedieferred to herein as
“Indemnifiable Expenses” and “Indemnifiable Liabis,” respectively, and collectively as “Indemablle Amounts”).

(b) Proceedings By or In the Right of the Comparf§ubject to the exceptions contained in Sect{by delow, if
Indemnitee was or is a party or is threatened tmade a party to any Proceeding by or in the rigtlhe Company by
reason of Indemnitee’s Corporate Status, Indemsied be indemnified by the Company against alemnifiable
Expenses.

(c) Conclusive Presumption Regarding Standard of Cdremaking any determination required to be mawaiger
Delaware law with respect to entitlement to indefination hereunder, the person, persons or entéling such
determination shall presume that Indemnitee igledtto indemnification under this Agreement if éminitee submitted a
request therefor in accordance with Section 5 isfAlgreement, and the Company shall have the buséiproof to
overcome that presumption in connection with th&ingaby any person, persons or entity of any deiaition contrary to
that presumption.

4, Exceptions to Indemnification Indemnitee shall be entitled to indemnificatiorder Sections 3(a) and 3(b) above in all
circumstances other than with respect to any spetdim, issue or matter involved in the Procegdint of which Indemnitee’s claim for
indemnification has arisen, as follows:

(a) Proceedings Other Than By or In the Right of then@any. If indemnification is requested under Sectioa)3{nc
it has been finally adjudicated by a court of cotapejurisdiction that, in connection with such sifie claim, issue or
matter, Indemnitee failed to act (i) in good faatind (ii) in a manner




Indemnitee reasonably believed to be in or not spgddo the best interests of the Company, or, repect to any criminal
Proceeding, Indemnitee had reasonable cause &vbdhat Indemnitee’s conduct was unlawful, Indeemshall not be
entitled to payment of Indemnifiable Amounts herdem

(b) Proceedings By or In the Right of the Company indemnification is requested under Sectiob)&nd

(i) it has been finally adjudicated by a court ofrpetent jurisdiction that, in connection with sgiecific
claim, issue or matter, Indemnitee failed to adgtiAgood faith and (B) in a manner Indemnitee oeably
believed to be in or not opposed to the best interef the Company, Indemnitee shall not be edtitbe
payment of Indemnifiable Expenses hereunder; or

(ii) it has been finally adjudicated by a courtcoinpetent jurisdiction that Indemnitee is liablghe
Company with respect to such specific claim, Indieenshall not be entitled to payment of Indemiiiéa
Expenses hereunder with respect to such claimg issmatter unless the Court of Chancery or another
court in which such Proceeding was brought sha#rdgine upon application that, despite the adjuiioca
of liability, but in view of all the circumstance$ the case, Indemnitee is fairly and reasonabilifled to
indemnification for such Indemnifiable Expensesatisuch court shall deem proper; or

(iii) it has been finally adjudicated by a courtamimpetent jurisdiction that Indemnitee is lialiehe
Company for an accounting of profits made fromghechase or sale by the Indemnitee of securitidbe
Company pursuant to the provisions of Section 16flbhe Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the raled
regulations promulgated thereunder and amendmiesitsto or similar provisions of any federal, state
local statutory law, Indemnitee shall not be eaditto payment of Indemnifiable Expenses hereunder.

(c) Insurance ProceedsTo the extent payment is actually made to tldemmnitee under a valid and collectible
insurance policy in respect of Indemnifiable Amauint connection with such specific claim, issuenatter, Indemnitee
shall not be entitled to payment of Indemnifiabledunts hereunder except in respect of any excggmblehe amount of
payment under such insurance.




5. Procedure for Payment of Indemnifiable Amountsidemnitee shall submit to the Company a writesguest specifying tl
Indemnifiable Amounts for which Indemnitee seekgmant under Section 3 of this Agreement and thesbiasthe claim. The Company
shall pay such Indemnifiable Amounts to Indemnitéthin sixty (60) calendar days of receipt of tieguest. At the request of the
Company, Indemnitee shall furnish such documentatitd information as are reasonably available dertmitee and necessary to establish
that Indemnitee is entitled to indemnification herder.

6. Indemnification for Expenses of a Party Who is Whol Partly Successful Notwithstanding any other provision of this
Agreement, and without limiting any such provisitmthe extent that Indemnitee is, by reason oéinditees Corporate Status, a party to
is successful, on the merits or otherwise, in amc@eding, Indemnitee shall be indemnified agaifigExpenses reasonably incurred by
Indemnitee or on Indemnitee’s behalf in connectimrewith. If Indemnitee is not wholly successfusuch Proceeding but is successful, on
the merits or otherwise, as to one or more buttless all claims, issues or matters in such Prangethe Company shall indemnify
Indemnitee against all Expenses reasonably incinydddemnitee or on Indemnitee’s behalf in conioectvith each successfully resolved
claim, issue or matter. For purposes of this Agret, the termination of any claim, issue or mattesuch a Proceeding by dismissal, witt
without prejudice, by reason of settlement, judgimerder or otherwise, shall be deemed to be aesisfal result as to such claim, issue or
matter.

7. Effect of Certain Resolutions Neither the settlement or termination of anydeealing nor the failure of the Company to
award indemnification or to determine that indencaifion is payable shall create a presumptionltidgmnitee is not entitled to
indemnification hereunder. In addition, the teration of any proceeding by judgment, order, setleinconviction, or upon a plea of nolo
contendere or its equivalent shall not create aysngtion that Indemnitee did not act in good faitidl in a manner which Indemnitee
reasonably believed to be in or not opposed td#st interests of the Company or, with respechtocsiminal Proceeding, had reasonable
cause to believe that Indemnitee’s action was ufilaw

8. Adgreement to Advance Expenses; Undertakirihe Company shall advance all Expenses incunyeat on behalf of
Indemnitee in connection with any Proceeding, idirig a Proceeding by or in the right of the Compamyvhich Indemnitee is involved by
reason of such Indemnitee’s Corporate Status widnr(10) calendar days after the receipt by the@my of a written statement from
Indemnitee requesting such advance or advancestiinoerto time, whether prior to or after final disition of such Proceeding. To the ex
required by Delaware law, Indemnitee hereby un#tegao repay any and all of the amount of Inderahl&é Expenses paid to Indemnitee if it
is finally determined by a court of competent jditsion that Indemnitee is not entitled under #hgreement to indemnification with respect
to such Expenses. This undertaking is an unlingeztkeral obligation of Indemnitee.

9. Procedure for Advance Payment of Expens&sdemnitee shall submit to the Company a writeuest specifying the
Indemnifiable Expenses for which Indemnitee seekadvancement under Section 8 of this Agreemegéther with documentation
evidencing that Indemnitee has incurred such Indiggabte Expenses. Payment of Indemnifiable Expsense




under Section 8 shall be made no later than tehodl@ndar days after the Company’s receipt of saghest.

10.

11.

Remedies of Indemnitee

(a) Right to Petition Court In the event thdhdemnitee makes a request for payment of Indeatnié Amounts unde
Sections 3 and 5 above or a request for an advardeshindemnifiable Expenses under Sections 8%alove and the
Company fails to make such payment or advancememtimely manner pursuant to the terms of this

Agreement, Indemnitee may petition the Court of iiZiesty to enforce the Company’s obligations under Agreement.

(b) Burden of Proof In any judicial proceeding brought under Sectif@a) above, the Company shall have the
burden of proving that Indemnitee is not entitlegptyment of Indemnifiable Amounts hereunder.

(c) Expenses The Company agrees to reimburse Indemniteellifofuany Expenses incurred by Indemnitee in
connection with investigating, preparing for, lating, defending or settling any action broughtigemnitee under
Section 10(a) above, or in connection with anynglar counterclaim brought by the Company in coninadherewith,
whether or not Indemnitee is successful in wholangrart in connection with any such action.

(d) Failure to Act Not a DefenseThe failure of the Company (including its BoafdDirectors or any committee
thereof, independent legal counsel, or stockhojdermake a determination concerning the permiisitof the payment of
Indemnifiable Amounts or the advancement of Inddiablie Expenses under this Agreement shall not thefanse in any
action brought under Section 10(a) above, and sloékkreate a presumption that such payment omagvaent is not
permissible.

Defense of the Underlying Proceeding

€) Notice by Indemnitee Indemnitee agrees to notify the Company promypign being served with any summons,
citation, subpoena, complaint, indictment, inforimat or other document relating to any Proceedihgctvmay result in the
payment of Indemnifiable Amounts or the advanceno¢éiidemnifiable Expenses hereunder; provided,éw@s, that the
failure to give any such notice shall not disqualifdemnitee from the right, or otherwise affecaimy manner any right of
Indemnitee, to receive payments of Indemnifiableoimts or advancements of Indemnifiable Expensessarthe
Company’s ability to defend in such Proceeding éerially and adversely prejudiced thereby.




12.

(b) Defense by Company Subject to the provisions of the last senteridbis Section 11(b) and of Section 11

(c) below, the Company shall have the right to déflndemnitee in any Proceeding which may give toséne payment of
Indemnifiable Amounts hereunder; provided, howehat the Company shall notify Indemnitee of anyhsdecision to
defend within ten (10) calendar days of receiptatice of any such Proceeding under Section 1@ye& The Company
shall not, without the prior written consent of éminitee, consent to the entry of any judgment ag&imiemnitee or enter
into any settlement or compromise which (i) inclei@® admission of fault of Indemnitee or (ii) does include, as an
unconditional term thereof, the full release ofdnuhitee from all liability in respect of such Predeng, which release shall
be in form and substance reasonably satisfactolrydemnitee. This Section 11(b) shall not applg teroceeding brought
by Indemnitee under Section 10(a) above or pursisaBéection 19 below.

(c) Indemniteés Right to Counsel Notwithstanding the provisions of Section 114bbve, if in a Proceeding to
which Indemnitee is a party by reason of Indemrst&@orporate Status, (i) Indemnitee reasonably kemtes that he or she
may have separate defenses or counterclaims td aggerespect to any issue which may not be iast with the positio
of other defendants in such Proceeding, (ii) alexirdf interest or potential conflict of interestists between Indemnitee
and the Company, or (iii) if the Company fails ssame the defense of such proceeding in a timehneralndemnitee shi
be entitled to be represented by separate legalsebof Indemnitee’s choice at the expense of thmgany. In addition, if
the Company fails to comply with any of its obligais under this Agreement or in the event thailGhmpany or any other
person takes any action to declare this Agreemadtar unenforceable, or institutes any actiont suproceeding to deny
or to recover from Indemnitee the benefits intentbelde provided to Indemnitee hereunder, Indemrmitedl have the right
to retain counsel of Indemniteethoice, at the expense of the Company, to représgemnitee in connection with any si
matter.

Representations and Warranties of the Companlge Company hereby represents and warrantgitarinitee as follows:

(a) Authority . The Company has all necessary power and authorénter into, and be bound by the terms of, this
Agreement, and the execution, delivery and perfocaaf the undertakings contemplated by this Agesdrhave been du
authorized by the Company.

(b) Enforceability. This Agreement, when executed and deliverechbyompany in accordance with the provisions
hereof, shall be a legal, valid and binding oblgabf the Company, enforceable against the Compaagcordance with i
terms, except as such enforceability may be limigdpplicable bankruptcy, insolvency, moratoriwegrganization or
similar laws affecting the enforcement of creditoights generally.




13. Insurance For a period of six (6) years following the datewhich Indemnitee no longer serves as a dirgofticer or
employee of the Company or any Subsidiary, andtich longer period, if any, for which Indemniteeynba subject to a Proceeding by
reason of Indemnitee’s Corporate Status, the Cognfiashall maintain a policy or policies of insae with one or more reputable insurance
companies providing the Indemnitee with coveragenramount not less than, and of a type and scopmaterially less favorable to
Indemnitee than, the directors’ and officers’ llabiinsurance coverage presently maintained byGbmpany, (ii) shall pay on a timely basis
all premiums on such insurance and (iii) shall jtevsuch notices and renewals in a complete anelytimanner and take such other actions
as may be required in order to keep such insuriamnieel force and effect. In all policies of diree and officer liability insurance, Indemnitee
shall be named as an insured in such a mannerpaevinle Indemnitee the same rights and benefitgasccorded to the most favorably
insured of the Company’s officers and directors.

14, Contract Rights Not Exclusive The rights to payment of Indemnifiable Amountsl @dvancement of Indemnifiable
Expenses provided by this Agreement shall be intiatidto, but not exclusive of, any other rightsiethIndemnitee may have at any time
under applicable law, the Company’s Certificaténgiorporation or By-laws, or any other agreemeate\of stockholders or directors (or a
committee of directors), or otherwise, both asadtioa in Indemnitee’s official capacity and as ttian in any other capacity as a result of
Indemnitee’s serving as a director or officer af @ompany.

15. Successors This Agreement shall be (a) binding upon allcessors and assigns of the Company (includingramgferee
of all or a substantial portion of the business¢ktand/or assets of the Company and any direadinect successor by merger or
consolidation or otherwise by operation of law) #ibpbinding on and shall inure to the benefitha# heirs, personal representatives, exec
and administrators of Indemnitee. In the eventtira Company or any of its successors or assiyjnsr{solidates with or merges into any
other person or entity and shall not be the compor surviving corporation or entity of such colidation or merger or (ii) transfers or
conveys all or substantially all of its properté®d assets to any person or entity, then, andcim ®ach case, proper provision shall be ma
that the successors and assigns of the Companyashe obligations of the Company under this Agremim This Agreement shall continue
for the benefit of Indemnitee and such heirs, pekoepresentatives, executors and administrafteslademnitee has ceased to have
Corporate Status.

16. Subrogation In the event of any payment of Indemnifiable Amts under this Agreement, the Company shall be
subrogated to the extent of such payment to ahefights of contribution or recovery of Indemeitggainst other persons, and Indemnitee
shall take, at the request of the Company, allorglsle action necessary to secure such rightsidimg} the execution of such documents as
are necessary to enable the Company to bringcsaitforce such rights.

17. Change in Law To the extent that a change in Delaware law {ladreby statute or judicial decision) shall perbrivader
indemnification or advancement of expenses than is




provided under the terms of the By-laws and thiseggent, Indemnitee shall be entitled to such oadiemnification and advancements,
and this Agreement shall be deemed to be amendadttoextent.

18. Severability. Whenever possible, each provision of this Agreetnshall be interpreted in such a manner as tffbetive
and valid under applicable law, but if any provisif this Agreement, or any clause thereof, shallietermined by a court of competent
jurisdiction to be illegal, invalid or unenforceabln whole or in part, such provision or clausalishe limited or modified in its application
the minimum extent necessary to make such provisiatause valid, legal and enforceable, and theaneing provisions and clauses of this
Agreement shall remain fully enforceable and bigdin the parties.

19. Indemnitee as Plaintiff Except as provided in Section 10(c) of this Agnent and in the next sentence, Indemnitee shall
not be entitled to payment of Indemnifiable Amount@&dvancement of Indemnifiable Expenses withaesfo any Proceeding brought by
Indemnitee against the Company, any Entity whidoittrols, any director or officer thereof, or ahird party, unless the Board of Directors
of the Company has consented to the initiatioruchsProceeding. This Section shall not apply tan¢erclaims or affirmative defenses
asserted by Indemnitee in an action brought aghaidsimnitee.

20. Modifications and Waiver Except as provided in Section 17 above witheespp changes in Delaware law which broaden
the right of Indemnitee to be indemnified by then@pany, no supplement, modification or amendmettisfAgreement shall be binding
unless executed in writing by each of the partergto. No waiver of any of the provisions of tAgreement shall be deemed or shall
constitute a waiver of any other provisions of hggeement (whether or not similar), nor shall suiver constitute a continuing waiver.

21. General Notices All notices, requests, demands and other comeations hereunder shall be in writing and shall be
deemed to have been duly given (a) when deliveydubbd, (b) when transmitted by facsimile and ngtcisi acknowledged, or (c) if mailed
certified or registered mail with postage prepaitthe third business day after the date on whithso mailed:




0] If to Indemnitee, to:

(i) If to the Company, to:

Watts Water Technologies, Inc.
815 Chestnut Street

North Andover, MA 01845
Facsimile: (978) 688-2976
Attention:

or to such other address as may have been furnistied same manner by any party to the others.

22. Governing Law; Consent to Jurisdiction; Servicdafcess This Agreement shall be governed by and condtiue
accordance with the laws of the State of Delawatleout regard to its rules of conflict of laws. dBaof the Company and the Indemnitee
hereby irrevocably and unconditionally consentsutbmit to the exclusive jurisdiction of the CouftGhancery of the State of Delaware and
the courts of the United States of America locateithe State of Delaware (the “Delaware Courtst)dny litigation arising out of or relating
to this Agreement and the transactions contempla¢eeby (and agrees not to commence any litigagtaiing thereto except in such courts),
waives any objection to the laying of venue of aagh litigation in the Delaware Courts and agresdamplead or claim in any Delaware
Court that such litigation brought therein has beeyught in an inconvenient forum. Each of thetiparhereto agrees, (a) to the extent such
party is not otherwise subject to service of predeghe State of Delaware, to appoint and mairdaiagent in the State of Delaware as such
party’s agent for acceptance of legal process (nthat service of process may also be made dam gaity by prepaid certified mail with a
proof of mailing receipt validated by the Unitedi®s Postal Service constituting evidence of \&ditvice. Service made pursuant to (a) or
(b) above shall have the same legal force andtedfed served upon such party personally withi $ttate of Delaware. For purposes of
implementing the parties’ agreement to appointmathtain an agent for service of process in théeSiiDelaware, each such party does
hereby appoint The Corporation Trust Company, 12f#hge Street, Wilmington, New Castle County, Dele19801, as such agent and
each such party hereby agrees to complete allrectiocessary for such appointment.

23. [Prior Agreement This Agreement supersedes and replaces intitegrthe Indemnification Agreement between the
Indemnitee and the Company dated as of , |




IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have exettlis Agreement as of the day and year first atvavieen.

WATTS WATER TECHNOLOGIES, INC

By:

Name:
Title:

INDEMNITEE

Name:




Name of Indemnitee

Schedule of Omitted Information

Date of Agreement

Date of Prior
Agreement
(Section 23)

Person Signing or
behalf of the Company

Roger A. Young
Daniel J. Murphy, llI
Gordon W. Moran
Kenneth J. McAvoy
John K. McGillicuddy
Timothy P. Horne
Patrick S. O’Keefe
William J. Merchant
Lester J. Taufen
Kenneth R. Lepage
William C. McCartney

Timothy MacPhee

Ralph E. Jackson, Jr.

William D. Martino
Gregory J. Michaud
Robert L. Ayers
Richard J. Cathcart
David J. Coghlan
Kennett F. Burnes

Merilee Raines

February 10, 2004
February 10, 2004
February 10, 2004
February 10, 2004
February 10, 2004
February 10, 2004
February 10, 2004
February 10, 2004
February 10, 2004
February 10, 2004
February 10, 2004
February 10, 2004
June 23, 2004
October 31, 2005
August 1, 2006
October 30, 2006
October 29, 2007
June 16, 2008
February 9, 2009

February 7, 2011

November 5, 2003
November 5, 2003
November 5, 2003
November 5, 2003
November 5, 2003
August 7, 2002
November 5, 2003
November 5, 2003
November 5, 2003
November 5, 2003
November 5, 2003
Not Applicable
Not Applicable
Not Applicable
Not Applicable
Not Applicable
Not Applicable
Not Applicable
Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Patrick S. O’'Keefe
Chief Executive Office
Patrick S. O’'Keefe
Chief Executive Office
Patrick S. O’Keefe
Chief Executive Office
Patrick S. O’Keefe
Chief Executive Office
Patrick S. O’'Keefe
Chief Executive Office
Patrick S. O’'Keefe
Chief Executive Office
William C. McCartney
Chief Financial Officel
Patrick S. O’Keefe
Chief Executive Office
Patrick S. O’'Keefe
Chief Executive Office
Patrick S. O’'Keefe
Chief Executive Office
Patrick S. O’Keefe
Chief Executive Office
Patrick S. O’Keefe
Chief Executive Office
Patrick S. O’'Keefe
Chief Executive Office
Patrick S. O’'Keefe
Chief Executive Office
Patrick S. O’Keefe
Chief Executive Office
Patrick S. O’Keefe
Chief Executive Office
Patrick S. O’'Keefe
Chief Executive Office
Patrick S. O’'Keefe
Chief Executive Office
Patrick S. O’Keefe
Chief Executive Office
David J. Coghlan
Chief Executive Office




Bernard Baert
W. Craig Kissel
Dean P. Freeman
Joseph T. Noonan

Suellen Torregrosa

Kenneth S. Korotkin

August 1, 2011
October 30, 2011
October 29, 2012

May 15, 2013

August 12, 2013

September 23, 2013

Not Applicable
Not Applicable
Not Applicable
Not Applicable
Not Applicable

Not Applicable

David J. Coghlan
Chief Executive Office
David J. Coghlan
Chief Executive Office
David J. Coghlan
Chief Executive Office
David J. Coghlan
Chief Executive Office
David J. Coghlan
Chief Executive Office
David J. Coghlan
Chief Executive Office




Exhibit 31.1

WATTS WATER TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO

SECTION 302 OF
THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
I, David J. Coghlan, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10fQVatts Water Technologies, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not comtaynuntrue statement of a material fact or omgitade a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts.under which such statements were made, nigadisg with respect to the period
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements$ otimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdtife periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) andrk responsible for establishing and maintainiisgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))%(nd internal control over financial reportirag @defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-
15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresused such disclosure controls and procedures tkesigned under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhgbsidiaries, is made known to us by others
within those entities, particularly during the metiin which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial réipgy, or caused such internal control over finah@gaorting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance rieggitie reliability of financial reporting and tipeeparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generallygiedeaccounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’sld&ire controls and procedures and presentedsimetport our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and proees] as of the end of the period covered by #psit based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the regstsanternal control over financial reporting thatcurred during the registrant’'s most
recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourthdisguarter in the case of an annual report) thatnhaterially affected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the registrant’s internal comaer financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) antdve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatioernal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

(&) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesgethe design or operation of internal contratiofinancial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regisfeaability to record, process, summarize and refioancial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involveamagement or other employees who have a significémin the registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting.

Date: November 6, 201
/s/ David J. Coghla
David J. Coghlat
Chief Executive Office

1




Exhibit 31.2

WATTS WATER TECHNOLOGIES, INC.
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO

SECTION 302 OF
THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
I, Dean P. Freeman, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10fQVatts Water Technologies, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not comtaynuntrue statement of a material fact or omgitade a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts.under which such statements were made, nigadisg with respect to the period
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements$ otimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdtife periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) andrk responsible for establishing and maintainiisgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))%(nd internal control over financial reportirag @defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-
15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresused such disclosure controls and procedures tkesigned under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhgbsidiaries, is made known to us by others
within those entities, particularly during the metiin which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial réipgy, or caused such internal control over finah@gaorting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance rieggitie reliability of financial reporting and tipeeparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generallygiedeaccounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’sld&ire controls and procedures and presentedsimetport our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and proees] as of the end of the period covered by #psit based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the regstsanternal control over financial reporting thatcurred during the registrant’'s most
recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourthdisguarter in the case of an annual report) thatnhaterially affected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the registrant’s internal comaer financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) antdve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatioernal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

(&) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesgethe design or operation of internal contratiofinancial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regisfeaability to record, process, summarize and refioancial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involveamagement or other employees who have a significémin the registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting.

Date: November 6, 201
/s/ Dean P. Freem:
Dean P. Freeme
Chief Financial Officel

1




Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

The undersigned officer of Watts Water Technolodies. (the “Company”) hereby certifies that, te khowledge, the Company’s quarterly
report on Form 10-Q to which this certificatioraisached (the “Report”), as filed with the Secestand Exchange Commission on the date
hereof, fully complies with the requirements of &t 13(a) or 15(d), as applicable, of the Secesitexchange Act of 1934, as amended (the
“Exchange Act”), and that the information containedhe Report fairly presents, in all materialpests, the financial condition and results of
operations of the Company. This certificationtisyided solely pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 134 leem 601(b)(32) of Regulation S-K
(“Item 601(b)(32)") promulgated under the Secusitict of 1933, as amended (the “Securities Actiid the Exchange Act. In accordance
with clause (ii) of Item 601(b)(32), this certifiban (A) shall not be deemed “filed” for purposdsSection 18 of the Exchange Act, or
otherwise subject to the liability of that sectiamd (B) shall not be deemed to be incorporatedfgrence into any filing under the Securities
Act or the Exchange Act, except to the extent thatCompany specifically incorporates it by refern

Date: November 6, 201
/sl David J. Coghla
David J. Coghlat
Chief Executive Office

1




Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

The undersigned officer of Watts Water Technolodies. (the “Company”) hereby certifies that, te khowledge, the Company’s quarterly
report on Form 10-Q to which this certificatioraisached (the “Report”), as filed with the Secestand Exchange Commission on the date
hereof, fully complies with the requirements of &t 13(a) or 15(d), as applicable, of the Secesitexchange Act of 1934, as amended (the
“Exchange Act”), and that the information containedhe Report fairly presents, in all materialpests, the financial condition and results of
operations of the Company. This certificationtisyided solely pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 134 leem 601(b)(32) of Regulation S-K
(“Item 601(b)(32)") promulgated under the Secusitict of 1933, as amended (the “Securities Actiid the Exchange Act. In accordance
with clause (ii) of Item 601(b)(32), this certifiban (A) shall not be deemed “filed” for purposdsSection 18 of the Exchange Act, or
otherwise subject to the liability of that sectiamd (B) shall not be deemed to be incorporatedfgrence into any filing under the Securities
Act or the Exchange Act, except to the extent thatCompany specifically incorporates it by refern

Date: November 6, 2013 /s/ Dean P. Freem:

Dean P. Freeme
Chief Financial Office

1




